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OUR VISION

A safe and secure New South Wales

OUR PURPOSE

Police and the community working
together to reduce violence, crime
and fear

OUR VALUES

Each member of the NSW Police
Force is to act in a manner which:

(a) places integrity above all,
(b) upholds the rule of law,

(c) preserves the rights and
freedoms of individuals,

(d) seeks to improve the quality of
life by community involvement in
policing,

(e) strives for citizen and police
personal satisfaction,

(f) capitalises on the wealth of
human resources,

(g) makes efficient and economical
use of public resources, and

(h) ensures that authority is
exercised responsibly.

OUR SERVICES

We serve 7,465,500 people
(approximately one third of
Australia’s total population).

We respond to crime, emergencies
and other calls for assistance by
land, air and sea.

We investigate crime, detect and
prosecute offenders.

We patrol identified crime hot spots,
provide a police presence at public
events and contribute to the security
of critical infrastructure.

We patrol roads, waterways and
public transport corridors, and
investigate major traffic crashes.
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The Hon Stuart Ayres MP

Minister for Police & Emergency Services
Parliament House

SYDNEY NSW 2000

Dear Minister,

I am pleased to submit the NSW Police Force Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2014 for
tabling in Parliament.

The report was prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Annual Reports (Departments)
Act 1985 and the Annual Reports (Departments) Regulation 2010. It complies with the
standardised reporting formulas for financial statements approved by the Treasurer.

Following the report’s tabling in Parliament, it will be available for public access on the NSW Police
Force website www.police.nsw.gov.au.

Yours sincerely,

A P Scipione APM
Commissioner of Police

Produced by the NSW Police Force Public Affairs Branch in conjunction with the Office of the Commissioner.
This report can be downloaded from www.police.nsw.gov.au.

ISSN: 1832-3472 © NSW Police Force 2014. This work is copyright. It may be reproduced in whole or in part for study or
training purposes, subject to the inclusion of an acknowledgement of the source. It may not be reproduced for commercial
usage or sale. Reproduction for purposes other than those indicated above requires written permission from the Director, Public
Affairs Branch, NSW Police Force.
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Commissioner’s Foreword

| am proud to lead more than 20,000 NSW Police Force
employees, including more than 16,000 sworn officers, working to
drive down crime and make the community of New South Wales
safer.

Along with our government and non-government partners we have
contributed to continuing reductions in crime rates across the State.
The NSW Bureau of Crime Statistics & Research (BOCSAR)
confirmed that for the 24 months to June 2014, seven of the 17
major offences were trending downward and the remaining 10
were stable.

These results are reflective of the use of traditional policing
methods, such as police patrols, targeted operations and
intelligence-led policing, but are also attributed to improved
technological advances, including specialised forensic computing
technology and laser technology to analyse drug samples. We
have continued our fight against organised crime, including the
targeting of outlaw motorcycle gangs, firearms and public place
shootings and the seizure of illicit drugs and dismantling of drug
laboratories.

A range of NSW Government initiatives were introduced this
reporting year to help us to reduce alcohol related violence and

Andrew Scipione APM Commissioner of Police . . : . .
with Australian Special Olympian Lisa Vineberg ~ Offensive behaviours. These include the identification of a CBD

precinct, within which restrictions on alcohol sales and lock out

periods apply and temporary banning orders can be made. Powers
to move-on intoxicated persons from public places and the trial of sobering up centres will also continue. These
measures, in addition to the return of patrolling police officers on trains, buses and at transport interchanges, will
assist in eliminating alcohol related violence in NSW and improving public amenity.

Across a range of areas we are assisting in improving protections for victims and vulnerable members of our
community. Senior police are now able to issue provisional apprehended violence orders and a risk assessment
and mitigation model of determining bail and detention applications was introduced by the NSW Government,
both of which aim to improve community safety.

During 2013-14 we supported the Special Commission of Inquiry into matters relating to the police investigation
of certain child sexual abuse allegations in the Catholic Diocese of Maitland—Newcastle, the Royal Commission
into Institutional Responses to Child Sexual Abuse and the Royal Commission into Trade Union Governance and
Corruption.

This reporting year we continued to support our staff through an emphasis on maintaining a healthy lifestyle.
Everyday operations were made easier by the introduction of modernised computer systems to enhance
organisational effectiveness and efficiency. Extending the use of smartphones and other mobile technology to
allow police to issue infringements is also being trialled to improve our future services.

Community support for police and the work they do is fundamental to our success in reducing crime and making
New South Wales safer. Support from members of the community, across all ages and from a range of
multicultural and linguistically diverse backgrounds, drives us to continually improve our efforts. The Community
Awareness of Policing Program has now been expanded to include local area commands, allowing community
leaders to experience and better understand the issues faced by police in their local area, which will assist in
continuing to maintain this strong relationship.

With your continued support | am confident that we can meet the challenges of the coming year.

A P Scipione APM
Commissioner of Police
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Our Police Regions

Seventy six local area commands (LACs) operate from 432 police stations delivering policing services to
communities. Specialist commands complement the general duties operational capability, covering land,
sea and air operations.

1 CENTRAL METROPOLITAN REGION 4 SOUTHERN REGION

Area in square kilometres 541.23 sq km Area in square kilometres 199,443.07 sq km
Resident population* 1,167,442 Resident population* 948,767

Number of police officers 2,276 Number of police officers 1,450

Number of administrative staff 179 Number of administrative staff 149

2 SOUTH WEST METROPOLITAN REGION 5 NORTHERN REGION

Area in square kilometres 3,637.93 sq km Area in square kilometres 70,114.78 sq km
Resident population* 1,434 813 Resident population* 1,562,921
Number of police officers 2,037 Number of police officers 2,038

Number of administrative staff 180 Number of administrative staff 193

3 NORTH WEST METROPOLITAN REGION 6 WESTERN REGION

Area in square kilometres 6,254.98 Sq Km Area in square kilometres 520,382.57 sq km
Resident population* 1,832,971 Resident population* 518,585

Number of police officers 2,075 Number of police officers 1,161

Number of administrative staff 179 Number of administrative staff 151

*Changes in published figures reflect updated population benchmarks following the 2011 Census. Region population estimates
have been derived by taking each region's share of the NSW population at June 2011 (derived by aggregating small area data
from the ABS) and apportioning this to the total NSW population as at December 2012 (source: ABS Demographic Statistics,

cat no 3101.0).The Statistical Area Level 1 (SA1) is the smallest geographic area defined in the Australian Statistical Geography
Standard (ASGS) for use in the release of Census data. SA1 boundaries aggregate to NSW Police Force Region boundaries.

These figures do not include staff (police and administrative) who are centrally managed but deployed throughout the regions
in specialist and corporate roles to provide investigative support, radio communications, call centres, forensic services,
complaints and employee management, air and sea policing, specialist surveillance, canine and mounted support, media and
public relations, counter terrorism and major crime investigation, police prosecutions, technology support, occupational health
and safety, injury management, education and training including leadership development, human resource support and asset
management.
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Our Organisation

OUR CHARTER

The NSW Police Force operates under the Police Act 1990 and the Police Regulation 2008.

The Night Watch was formed by Governor Arthur Phillip in 1789 to guard Sydney Town. It was the first civilian
police force in Australia. In 1862 all Watch Teams were combined under the Police Regulation Act 1862 to form
the NSW Police Force. That Act was later replaced by the Police Regulation Act 1899. In June 1987, the NSW
Police Force (which was responsible for police operations) and the NSW Police Department (which was
responsible for police policy and administration) were amalgamated.

Today the NSW Police Force has 20,329 employees: 16,467 police officers and 3,862 civilian staff.

In the 2013-14, the NSW Government funding contributions to the NSW Police Force were $3.4 billion.

NSW POLICE FORCE ORGANISATIONAL CHART

COMMISSIONER OF POLICE

ANDREW SCIPIONE APM
OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER

4 g
FIELD SPECIALIST KCORPORATE
OPERATIONS OPERATIONS SERVICES
DEPUTY DEPUTY DEPUTY
COMMISSIONER COMMISSIONER COMMISSIONER
NICK KALDAS APM CATHERINE BURN APM DAVE HUDSON APM
- Central Metropolitan Region + Counter Terrorism and Special - Business and Technology Services
- North West Metropolitan Region Tactics Command - Strategic Technologies and Planning
- South West Metropolitan Region - Forensic Services Group + Education and Training Command
+ Northern Region - Operational Communications and - Financial and Business Services
+ Southern Region Information Command + Human Resources Command
+ Western Region + Police Prosecutions Command - Office of the General Counsel
+ Major Events and Incidents Group - Police Transport Command + Performance Improvement and
- State Crime Command - Public Affairs Branch Planning Command
- Special Services Group + Professional Standards Command
- Traffic and Highway Patrol Command + Shared Services
Y ) \ Customer Service y. Y )
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OUR GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Commissioner has primary responsibility for the day to day governance of the organisation and is
responsible to the Minister for Police & Emergency Services for the overall direction and performance of the NSW
Police Force. The Commissioner’'s Executive Team (CET) is the peak decision making body and is responsible
for the overall direction of the NSW Police Force on behalf of the NSW Government. The role of CET includes:

e developing and implementing the overall strategic direction of the NSW Police Force

e planning for the future

e achieving NSW 2021 (State Plan) targets

e monitoring and measuring corporate performance against Corporate Plan 2012-16 targets and
expectations

e ensuring compliance with external and internal controls and processes

e setting budgets and monitoring financial performance

e reporting to government

e managing organisational reform.

MEMBERS OF THE COMMISSIONER’S EXECUTIVE TEAM

Chair: Commissioner

Members: Deputy Commissioner Field Operations, Deputy Commissioner Specialist Operations, Deputy
Commissioner Corporate Services

Associate members: Representatives from Field Operations, Specialist Operations and Corporate Services on
rotation for six months

Ex-officio member: Director, Public Affairs Branch

Commissioner Andrew Scipione APM joined the NSW Police Force in 1980 and was appointed Commissioner
in September 2007. He holds a Masters Degree in Management (Macquarie University), a Graduate Diploma in
Police Management (Macquarie University) and a Graduate Certificate in Security Management (Edith Cowan
University). He is a Fellow of the Australian Institute of Management, a Member of the Australian Institute of
Company Directors and a Graduate of the FBI National Executive Institute. In April 2013 Commissioner Scipione
was awarded an Honorary Doctor of Letters from Macquarie University and he is an Adjunct Professor at the
University of Western Sydney’s School of Social Sciences & Psychology.

Deputy Commissioner Field Operations, Nick Kaldas APM joined the NSW Police Force in 1981 and was
promoted to the rank of Deputy Commissioner in March 2008. He completed the FBI Hostage Negotiator’s
Course in Quantico, Virginia, USA, and holds a Master’s Degree in Public Policy & Administration (Charles Sturt
University) and is a graduate and former visiting Fellow of the Management of Serious Crime Program (AFP).

Deputy Commissioner Specialist Operations, Catherine Burn APM joined the NSW Police Force in 1984 and
was promoted to the rank of Deputy Commissioner in July 2010. Her qualifications include a Bachelor of Arts
degree, an Honours Degree in Psychology, a Masters of Management and the Department of Premier & Cabinet
Executive Development Program (2004).

Deputy Commissioner Corporate Services David Hudson APM joined the NSW Police Force in 1981 and
was promoted to the rank of Deputy Commissioner in February 2013. He is a graduate of the FBI National
Academy Program, and holds a Masters of Public Policy & Administration and a Graduate Certificate in
Criminology.

A CULTURE OF ETHICAL AND LAWFUL BEHAVIOUR

Our Statement of Values and Code of Conduct & Ethics outline appropriate behaviour for all NSW Police
Force staff.

Our Ethics & Integrity Framework seeks to ensure ethics are incorporated into all aspects of policing, making
ethical behaviour, practices and decision making a part of daily routine. This framework is supported by a range
of policies and initiatives that promote a culture that is resistant to corruption, misconduct and internal fraud.
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Year in Review

FIELD OPERATIONS

Local police are the backbone of the NSW Police Force. Under the leadership of
the Deputy Commissioner Field Operations, the majority of officers work in local
area commands (LACs) and provide community-based policing services.

Through its various units Field Operations targets crime and the fear of crime,
antisocial behaviour, crowd and riot control, and drives programming and initiatives
for diverse and vulnerable communities as well as for community engagement.

Field Operations also commands major incidents and events in New South Wales,
and as of August 2013, the State Crime Command, which comprises multiple
expert directorates to target and investigate serious and organised crime.

Some of our biggest operations this year included Operation Talon, formed in
August 2013 to tackle public place shootings; Operation Taipan, one of the state’s
longest and most successful organised crime investigations which has seized
more than $155 million in illicit drugs; Strike Force Oceanic, which brought down
a sophisticated drug supply operation in the state’s south and seized close to $15 million worth of illicit drugs; and
Operation Polaris, a joint investigative effort involving the AFP Customs and the Australian Crime Commission.
This year Polaris investigators seized the largest amount of para-methoxymethamphetamine (PMMA) oil, with the
potential to create approximately $18 million worth of ecstasy.

Deputy Commissioner
Naguib (Nick) Kaldas APM

We marked the fifth anniversary of Strike Force Raptor, which targets outlaw motorcycle gangs. Since it was
established, 2,582 people have been charged with 6,027 offences ranging from commercial drug manufacture to
drive-by shooting. Raptor has also detected 17 clandestine laboratories and completely dismantled 20 outlaw
motorcycle gang (OMCG) clubhouses across the state.

In a combined approach to address alcohol related violence and to change drinking behaviour in New South
Wales, new laws requiring 1.30am lock outs and 3am last drinks were imposed across central Sydney. The
changes also introduce tougher penalties for alcohol-related assaults and ban bottle shop sales after 10pm
across the state.

The Community Relations Commission (CRC) reported that the NSW Police Force has demonstrated best
practice in multicultural implementation, and is rated within the highest level of the NSW Government
Multicultural Framework. In the Community Relations Report 2013: Advancing Multiculturalism in NSW, the CRC
acknowledged that our strong focus on effective and sustainable community interaction is already having an
impact.

SPECIALIST OPERATIONS

Under the leadership of Deputy Commissioner Catherine Burn, police and unsworn
staff are deployed throughout the state to provide a specialist policing capability that
contributes to making New South Wales safe and secure. The command is
committed to the delivery of specialist policing services to all areas of the NSW
Police Force, particularly the front line.

Specialist commands complement operational capability by providing specialist and
technical support to the Field Operations Command in areas of technology and
communications, media management, forensic services, counter terrorism, traffic
and highway patrol, public transport and police prosecutions.

Deputy Commissioner This reporting year legislation was amended to give police clear, simple and
Catherine Burn APM effective powers of arrest to protect the community. As a result of changes to the

Crimes (Domestic Violence) Amendment Act, senior police are now able to issue a
provisional apprehended domestic violence order (ADVO) and place appropriate conditions on defendants to
protect the victims. Police also have the power to search for firearms, firearm parts or ammunition without a
warrant.

Developments in technology featured heavily this reporting year. As a result of the NSW Forensic Ballistics
Investigation Section, police across Australia now have access to the latest ballistics matching system to track
illegal firearms. When responding to technology enabled crime, frontline police in New South Wales are now
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capable of extracting digital evidence by interrogating electronic devices with specialised forensic computing
technology. Police also have access to laser technology that analyses suspected drug samples quickly and
easily in the field. The Police Transport Command has been addressing crime on the public transport network
with the mass deployment of police in operations such as Colossus and Raider, along with their combined
deployments alongside region and local police.

The Traffic & Highway Patrol Command works in partnership with the NSW Roads & Maritime Services and
the NSW Centre for Road Safety to focus on road safety, particularly within the heavy vehicle and bus fleets. This
year we achieved the state’s lowest road toll in nine decades.

Other specialist highlights include a new smartphone app, Emergency+, that improves the efficiency of calls to
Triple Zero (000) by members of the public; gaining unprecedented access to controlled airspace over almost
half of Sydney for police aircraft; and using FaceTime or Skype to allow corroborating police to give evidence at
court remotely.

The Community Awareness of Policing Program (CAPP) was extended this year to allow every command an

unprecedented opportunity to connect with community leaders. The new programme is known as CAPP in LACs
and allows participants to interact with local police, from constables to commanders, and see firsthand the issues
local police face on a daily basis.

CORPORATE SERVICES

Under the leadership of Deputy Commissioner Dave Hudson, Corporate Services
ensures police at the front line, and those who provide specialist and corporate
support to the front line, have the skills, capacity, resources and knowledge they
need to reduce crime and create safer communities in New South Wales.

Corporate Services commands are responsible for providing information technology,
education and training, finance and business management, human resource
management, health and welfare and civil legal support. Corporate Services is also
chiefly responsible for promoting organisational effectiveness and efficiency, and
ensuring police conduct meets the highest ethical standards.

In collaboration with the Department of Justice, the NSW Police Force enhanced the
automated exchange of court related information and made system changes
necessary to implement the Bail Act 2013, nearly doubling the number of data
transactions that are fully automated and significantly streamlining justice
administration as a result. The WebCOPs Program was fully deployed, providing police with an improved,
easier to use system. COPS modernisation continued with the deployment of a completely new custody
management system and the appointment of a service provider who delivered design specifications for the next
phase of modernisation to include a community portal and updated event and intelligence reporting.

Deputy Commissioner
Dave Hudson APM

In a series of lectures hosted in collaboration with the Police Association of NSW, behavioural scientist Dr Kevin
Gilmartin explained how policing can affect officers’ thinking and wellbeing. His tips on how to maintain a
balance for a healthier lifestyle were so well received that Dr Gilmartin has been invited to return to the NSW
Police Force to further explore the topic, this time with an audience of police officers and their families.

The Strategic Technologies & Planning Command was recently established with the aim of identifying and
promoting better ways to work with technology. One important project is trialling the use of smartphones and
other mobile technology to allow police to issue infringements and record intelligence while on patrol.

The NSW Police Force internal corporate performance assessment program, COMPASS, has this year
examined individual command and overall corporate performance. We continue to conduct up to three forums per
year to address emerging topics (such as population growth) where corporate priorities are yet to be formally
determined, ownership is yet to be allocated, and targets yet to be established.

Other highlights this reporting year include a review of the police promotion system; enhancements to disaster
recovery for critical systems; the introduction of electronic personnel files; the opening of an additional firing
range at the Police Academy in Goulburn; and commencing preparations for the celebration of the 100 year
anniversary of women in policing in 2015.
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How we Performed

The mission of the NSW Police Force, as set out in the Police Act 1990, is to work with the community to reduce
violence, crime and fear. Our Corporate Plan 2012-16 connects the guiding principles of the Directions in
Australia New Zealand Policing 2012-15 and the priorities of NSW 2021 (the State Plan) to our command
business plans and senior officer performance agreements.

The performance indicators presented in this section are drawn from the NSW Police Force Corporate Plan
2012-16, which establishes six key performance areas for all of the Force’s performance plans and reports
(crime, public safety, community and partners, people, systems and leadership). A copy of the plan is available
on the NSW Police Force website, www.police.nsw.gov.au, or by searching for “NSW Police Force Corporate
Plan”.

CRIME

We focus on reducing rates of crime, particularly violent crime. Frontline policing and the targeting of crime hot
spots and repeat offenders have contributed to crime levels across all major key indicators falling or remaining
stable.

Note: Recorded crime statistics represent only those matters reported to police. A change in recorded crime may reflect
changes in the propensity to report to police.

TABLE 1: NUMBER OF INCIDENTS RECORDED FOR CRIMES AGAINST PROPERTY

INCIDENT CATEGORY 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Break and enter - dwelling 41,234 40,571 38,887 38,749 34,699
Break and enter - non dwelling 17,746 17,057 16,792 15,571 13,298
Malicious damage to property 96,182 89,856 85,078 80,763 71,420
Steal from motor vehicle 45,919 45,963 48,471 45,600 43,221
Motor vehicle theft 21,832 19,692 19,065 16,983 15,023
Steal from dwelling 21,639 20,651 21,464 21,637 21,912
Steal from person 9,315 8,496 8,307 7,680 6,554
Steal from retail store 20,686 20,910 21,227 22,159 20,672

Source: NSW Bureau of Crime Statistics & Research

CHART 1: NUMBER OF INCIDENTS RECORDED FOR BREAK AND ENTER, AND PROPERTY DAMAGE
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CHART 2: NUMBER OF INCIDENTS RECORDED FOR CRIMES AGAINST PROPERTY
INVOLVING MOTOR VEHICLES
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CHART 3: NUMBER OF INCIDENTS RECORDED FOR CRIMES AGAINST PROPERTY INVOLVING
OTHER STEALING
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HOW WE PERFORMED (continued)

CHART 4: NUMBER OF INCIDENTS RECORDED FOR CRIMES AGAINST PERSONS
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TABLE 2: NUMBER OF INCIDENTS RECORDED FOR CRIMES AGAINST PERSONS
INCIDENT CATEGORY 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Assault - domestic violence related 26,082 26,748 26,638 28,044 28,982
Assault - non-domestic violence related 40,515 38,947 36,039 34,866 32,639
Robbery 5,770 5,069 4,730 4,325 3,759
Sexual assault 4,529 4,316 4,640 4,632 4,804

Source: NSW Bureau of Crime Statistics & Research
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CHART 5: NUMBER OF INCIDENTS RECORDED FOR ALCOHOL-RELATED NON-DOMESTIC VIOLENCE
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TABLE 3: NUMBER OF INCIDENTS RECORDED NON-DOMESTIC VIOLENCE ASSAULTS WHERE
ALCOHOL WAS A FACTOR

INCIDENT CATEGORY 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

Assault (alcohol and non-domestic violence) 18,064 16,491 14,910 14,027 12,850

Source: NSW Police Force’s Computerised Operational Policing System

Note: Revisions to previous year’s statistics reflect updated investigations. A non-domestic violence assault is any assault that
does not have an associated factor of domestic violence.
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HOW WE PERFORMED (continued)

PUBLIC SAFETY
We focus on reducing levels of antisocial behaviour and the community’s perception and fear of crime. The

community expects public spaces to be safe to use. Police patrols are extensive and focus on hot spots for
poor driving, crime and antisocial behaviour.

Safety on our roads
CHART 6: CHARGES FOR EXCEEDING PRESCRIBED CONCENTRATION OF ALCOHOL
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CHART 7: INJURY CRASHES
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CHART 8: FATAL CRASHES
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TABLE 4: CHARGES FOR EXCEEDING PRESCRIBED CONCENTRATION OF ALCOHOL, INJURY CRASHES
AND FATAL CRASHES

INCIDENT CATEGORY 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Exceed prescribed concentration of alcohol 25,499 24,293 20,504 20,286 20,169
Injury crashes 18,928 18,059 17,451 16,353 15,934
Fatal crashes 394 320 350 318 326

Source: NSW Police Force Traffic & Highway Patrol Command

Note: Revisions to previous year’s statistics reflect updated investigations.
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HOW WE PERFORMED (continued)

CHART 9: CONCERN ABOUT SPEEDING CARS
OR DANGEROUS AND NOISY DRIVING IN LOCAL

NEIGHBOURHOODS, NSW
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CHART 11: CONCERN ABOUT LOUTS OR

GANGS IN LOCAL NEIGHBOURHOODS, NSW

PERCENTAGE

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

o0

2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 Australia
2013-14

©® Upper limit of confidence interval @ | ower limit

CHART 10: CONCERN ABOUT GRAFFITI
OR OTHER VANDALISM IN LOCAL
NEIGHBOURHOODS, NSW
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CHART 12: CONCERN ABOUT DRUNKEN
OR DISORDERLY BEHAVIOUR IN LOCAL
NEIGHBOURHOODS, NSW
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Source: National Survey of Community Satisfaction with Policing (NSCSP) 2013-14
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TABLE 5: CONCERN ABOUT CRIME AND ANTISOCIAL BEHAVIOUR IN LOCAL NEIGHBOURHOODS, NSW

NSW
AUSTRALIA

2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14
NSCSP Lower - Lower - Lower - Lower - Lower - Lower -
Survey Upper Limit Upper Limit Upper Limit Upper Limit Upper Limit Upper Limit
Speeding
cars or 72.2% | 75.8% | 69.6% | 75.5% | 65.1% | 71.8% | 54.0% | 61.2% | 55.4% | 62.9% | 59.4% | 62.3%
dangerous
drivers
Graffiti or
other 55.7% 59.7% 51.8% 58.5% 46.0% 53.0% 40.8% 48.0% 40.4% 48.1% 40.1% 43.1%
vandalism
Louts or
gangs 38.1% 42.0% 32.9% 39.5% 28.6% 35.1% 23.1% 29.4% 22.2% 28.9% 21.0% 23.5%
Drunken or
disorderly 47.5% 51.6% 37.8% 44.5% 40.0% 47.0% 36.5% 43.6% 33.9% 41.6% 32.3% 35.2%
behaviour

Source: National Survey of Community Satisfaction with Policing (NSCSP) 2013-14

Note: The percentage shown is the sum of respondents who consider the issue to be a ‘major problem’ and ‘somewhat of a
problem’. Any survey estimate is subject to sample error — the smaller the sample, the larger the sample error. Rather than
report point estimates, results are presented as a range (the 95% confidence interval). This means there are 19 chances in 20
that the true value lies within the range. Perceptions are influenced by many factors, not necessarily related to the actual level
of crime and social disorder (e.g. media reporting and past personal experiences).

Response times

The community expects police to be available and capable of responding to calls for assistance within a

reasonable time.

TABLE 6: URGENT RESPONSE CALLS?

2009-10 2010-11° 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Number of urgent response calls 120,082 113,749 119,254 120,783 116,685
Percentage attended to within target time 74.0% 80.0% 78.0% 78.1% 80.0%

Source: NSW Police Force EDW/CAD

a. Calls where there is an imminent threat to life or property. These can include calls to Triple Zero (000), calls to police stations
or radio calls from police in the field.
b. The target for police response is to arrive at 80% of urgent duty jobs within 12 minutes, which is considered to be a realistic
target given the size of the state of New South Wales. The target for 2009-10 and earlier years was 10 minutes. Response

times are influenced by a range of factors including the number of calls being responded to at that time, the time of day, traffic
and weather conditions, and the distance to travel.

NSW Police Force 2013-14 Annual Report 17




HOW WE PERFORMED (continued)

We focus on achieving safer public transport and public spaces. Targeted police presence on public transport is

intended to reduce antisocial behaviour and lead to safer use of public transport.

CHART 13: FEELING SAFE ON PUBLIC
TRANSPORT ALONE AT NIGHT, NSW
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CHART 14: FEELING SAFE WALKING/JOGGING
ALONE AT NIGHT, NSW
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Source: National Survey of Community Satisfaction with Policing (NSCSP) 2013-14
TABLE 7: FEELINGS OF SAFETY, NSW
NSW
AUSTRALIA

2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14
NSCSP Lower - Lower - Lower - Lower - Lower - Lower -
Survey Upper Limit Upper Limit Upper Limit Upper Limit Upper Limit Upper Limit
On public
transport 41.4% | 46.3% | 38.6% | 47.5% | 37.9% | 47.3% | 40.8% | 49.8% | 40.7% | 51.3% | 42.3% | 46.7%
at night
Walking/
jogging 60.5% | 64.5% | 50.9% | 58.5% | 54.6% | 62.4% | 53.9% | 62.0% | 57.4% | 65.6% | 57.5% | 60.7%
at night

Source: National Survey of Community Satisfaction with Policing (NSCSP) 2013-14

Note: The percentage shown is the sum of respondents who reported feeling ‘very safe’ and ‘safe’. Any survey estimate is
subject to sample error — the smaller the sample, the larger the sample error. Rather than report point estimates, results are
presented as a range (the 95% confidence interval). This means that there are 19 chances in 20 that the true value lies within

the range.
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COMMUNITY AND PARTNERS

We focus on increasing community confidence in police. Customer service initiatives and prompt, professional
responses to crime and safety issues are meeting community expectations.

CHART 15: SATISFACTION WITH MOST RECENT CHART 16: COMMUNITY CONFIDENCE IN
CONTACT WITH POLICE, NSW POLICE, NSW
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TABLE 8: COMMUNITY CONFIDENCE IN POLICE
NSW
AUSTRALIA
2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14
Lower - Lower - Lower - Lower - Lower - Lower -
NSCSP Survey Upper Limit Upper Limit Upper Limit Upper Limit Upper Limit Upper Limit
Satisfaction
with most
75.7% | 80.1% | 74.5% | 82.2% | 81.2% | 87.4% | 78.9% | 87.6% | 79.8% | 89.0% | 81.7% | 85.2%
recent contact
with police
ﬁog];?cince 79.6% | 82.7% | 83.3% | 88.2% | 81.8% | 86.9% | 80.7% | 87.0% | 84.3% | 90.0% | 85.3% | 87.5%

Source: National Survey of Community Satisfaction with Policing (NSCSP) 2013-14

Note: The percentage shown is the sum of ‘very satisfied/strongly agree’ and ‘satisfied/agree’. Any survey estimate is subject to
sample error — the smaller the sample, the larger the sample error. Rather than report point estimates, results are presented as
a range (the 95% confidence interval). This means that there are 19 chances in 20 that the true value lies within the range.
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HOW WE PERFORMED (continued)

Complaint trends

CHART 17: NSW POLICE FORCE CUSTOMER SERVICE COMPLAINTS?
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Source: NSW Police Force, Professional Standards Command

TABLE 9: NSW POLICE FORCE CUSTOMER SERVICE COMPLAINTS®

2009-10 2010-11° 2011-12 2012-13

2013-14

Customer service complaints 1,439 1,427 1,305 1,273

1,332

Source: NSW Police Force, Professional Standards Command

a. A complaint may contain more than one issue. For further information about issues raised in complaints see Appendix 9

on page 89.

b. In November 2009 the NSW Police Force introduced its Customer Service Charter. The Charter excluded persons under
arrest and criminal suspects from the definition of customer. At this time a change was also made to what constituted a
customer service related complaint. 2010-11 was the first full year in which the new definitions of customer and customer

service related complaint applied.
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PEOPLE

We focus on enhancing the capabilities of our staff and providing a safe and supportive work environment.

Police number and distribution

TABLE 10: POLICE NUMBERS, NSW

NUMBERS AS

AT 30 JUNE 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Actual 15,633 15,943 15,976 16,371 16,467
Authorised positions 15,556 15,806 15,956 16,176 16,355

Source: NSW Police Force, Human Resources

Note: The number of authorised positions is the approved total number of police officer positions. The actual number of police
officers at any time may be higher or lower than the number of authorised positions since recruitment is planned to replace the
expected number of officers lost through attrition (due to resignation, retirement, discharge or other reasons).

Police officer turnover was 2.4% for 2013-14, down from 3.5% for 2012-13. The latest available national average
turnover for police positions was 5.6% (Police Agencies HR Benchmarking Report 2012-13).

NSW Police Officers who work Sunday and public holiday shifts accrue additional compensatory Annual Leave.
This additional leave is added to normal Award entitlements for annual leave in order to calculate leave liabilities
included in the NSW Police Force Financial Statements. Due to restrictions on when officers can take the
additional leave, two measures of excess annual leave are used in NSW Police Force reporting.

e The total number of police officers over the maximum allowed accrued hours of annual leave (including
additional leave) was 2,106 (12.8% of all NSW police officers), down from 2,872 in 2012-13 (17.5%).

e The total number of police officers over the maximum allowed accrued hours of annual leave
(excluding additional leave) was 1,433 (8.7% of all NSW Police Force police officers), down from
2,196 in 2012-13 (13.4%).

The average number of hours lost per employee (sworn and administrative) due to unplanned absences (that is
sick leave and workplace injury leave) was 97 hours in 2013-14, down from 105 hours in 2012-13.

The average number of sick leave hours per employee was 53 hours during 2013-14, unchanged from 2012-13.

The number of hours lost per employee through workplace injury was 44 hours during 2013-14, down from
52 hours in 2012-13.

Note: Data on unplanned absences for 2013-14 and 2012-13 were extracted on 7 October 2014. Data is subject to revision in
subsequent years as updated information on unplanned absences are received and entered on the system.
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HOW WE PERFORMED (continued)

SYSTEMS

We focus on improving organisational capability to deliver our services. LACs are the primary focus of service

delivery by the NSW Police Force.
CHART 18: REGION STAFF DEPLOYMENT, 2013-14
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TABLE 11: REGION RESOURCE DEPLOYMENT BY ACTIVITY GROUPS

Community

support
48%

SERVICE GROUPS

PROPORTION OF ROSTERED HOURS

Community support® 48.3%
Criminal investigation® 20.9%
Traffic and commuter services® 10.1%
Judicial support® 5.9%
Support functions® 14.8%
Total 100.0%

Source: NSW Police Force, SAP

a. Community support includes supplying an effective, timely and flexible 24 hour response to incidents, emergencies

and public events.

b. Criminal investigation includes crime detection, investigation, forensic services and dealing with alleged offenders.
c. Traffic and commuter services includes patrolling roads, highways and public transport corridors, investigating major vehicle

crashes, detecting traffic and transport offences, and supervising peak traffic flows.

d. Judicial support includes judicial and custodial services, prosecuting offenders, presenting evidence at court, transport and

custody for people under police supervision, and support to victims and witnesses.

e. Support functions include administrative functions such as education and training, finance, human resources, information
technology, etc. The service groups represent the NSW Police Force budget programs. A full description of these groups and

their linkage to results is given in note 6 to the Financial Report on page 51.
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SATISFACTION WITH POLICE

We aim to provide our people with the skills and direction to do an effective job.

CHART 19: SATISFACTION WITH SERVICES PROVIDED BY POLICE, NSW
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Source: National Survey of Community Satisfaction with Policing (NSCSP) 2013-14

TABLE 12: SATISFACTION WITH SERVICES PROVIDED BY POLICE, NSW

NSW
AUSTRALIA
2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 201314 2013-14
NSCSP Lower - Lower - Lower - Lower - Lower - Lower -
Survey Upper Limit Upper Limit Upper Limit Upper Limit Upper Limit Upper Limit
Satisfaction
with
services 63.5% | 67.4% | 74.1% | 79.8% | 69.8% | 76.3% | 72.0% | 78.9% | 69.9% | 76.9% | 74.0% | 76.7%
provided by
police

Source: National Survey of Community Satisfaction with Policing (NSCSP) 2013-14

Note: The percentage shown is the sum of ‘very satisfied’ and ‘satisfied’. Any survey estimate is subject to sample error — the
smaller the sample, the larger the sample error. Rather than report point estimates, results are presented as a range (the 95%
confidence interval). This means that there are 19 chances in 20 that the true value lies within the range.
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Financial Summary

MAJOR EXPENSES

Total expenses including losses were $3,441.3 million. About 82% of this amount represented employee-related
expenses ($2,820.0 million), with $1,811.1 million spent on salaries, wages and annual leave entitlements.
Employee-related expenses increased 11% from 2012-13. This consists of salaries, wages and annual leave
entitlements, Crown acceptance of certain employee-related costs such as superannuation and long service
leave expenses, workers’ compensation insurance and other expenses. Maintenance of property, plant and
equipment totalled $37.0 million.

CONTRIBUTIONS AND REVENUE

Total contributions and revenue were $3,410.4 million, about 4% higher than 2012-13. This contribution consists
of recurrent grants, capital grants, Crown acceptance of certain employee-related costs such as superannuation,
long service leave expenses, and other revenue. Capital grants were $124.0 million. Revenue from the sale of
goods and services was $38.0 million, about 13% higher than 2012-13.

ACTUAL AND BUDGET EXPENDITURE ($°000)

2013- | $3,441,296 |
2014 | $3.393,307 |
2012- | $3,138,549 |

2013 | $3,305,997 |
2011- | $3,164,783 |

2012 | $3,203,719 |
2010- | $2,959,252 |

2011 | $2,683,130 |

2009- | $2.707,762 |

2010 | $2,463,103 |

[0 Actual Expenditure
[0 Budget Expenditure

FISCAL IMPACT OF THE OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

Economic development and changes in the environment are often unpredictable and beyond the control of the
NSW Police Force. Events like droughts and emergencies can cause change in a community’s circumstances
and impact on our ability to deliver our planned results. However in the last year, there were no factors which
affected the delivery of policing services.
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Total Expenses and Losses $3,441.3 million

Employee related
expenses
$2,820.0m (81.95%)

Other operating
expenses
. $455.4m (13.23%)
Other expenses Depreciation and
and losses amortisation
$26.0m (0.75%) $139.9m (4.07%)

Total Contributions and Revenue $3,410.4 million

Grants and contributions
$3,137.6m (92.00%

Investment revenue

$3.7m (0.11%) Other revenue

$38.8m (1.14%)

Sale of goods and Acceptance by the
services Crown Entity of

$38.0m (1.11%) employee benefits and
other liabilities

$192.3m (5.64%)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

NSW Police Force

To Members of the New South Wales Parliament

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the NSW Police Force (the Force), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2014, the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows, and service group statements for the
year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Opinion
In my opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Force as at 30 June 2014, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards

. are in accordance with section 45E of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 (the PF&A Act)
and the Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2010,

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report.
Commissioner’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Commissioner is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the PF&A Act, and for such internal
control as the Commissioner determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on my audit. | conducted
my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that | comply with
relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Force’s
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Force’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Commissioner, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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| believe the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

My opinion does not provide assurance:

. about the future viability of the Force

. that it has carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically

. about the effectiveness of its internal control

. about the assumptions used in formulating the budget figures disclosed in the financial
statements

. about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited financial
statements on any website where they may be presented

. about other information that may have been hyperlinked to/from the financial statements.

Independence

In conducting my audit, | have complied with the independence requirements of the Australian
Auditing Standards and relevant ethical pronouncements. The PF&A Act further promotes
independence by:

. providing that only Parliament, and not the executive government, can remove an
Auditor-General
. mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of public sector agencies, but precluding the

provision of non-audit services, thus ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of
New South Wales are not compromised in their roles by the possibility of losing clients or
income.

CllahO

Chris Clayton
Director, Financial Audit Services

17 September 2014
SYDNEY
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START OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NSW POLICE FORCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 30 June 2014

Pursuant to section 45F of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983, we state that:

(a) the accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
provisions of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983, the Financial Reporting
Code for NSW General Government Sector Entities, the applicable clauses of the
Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2010, applicable Australian Accounting
Standards, other mandatory professional reporting requirements and Treasurer’s
Directions and Treasury Circulars;

(b) the statements exhibit a true and fair view of the financial position and transactions
of the NSW Police Force; and

© we are not aware of any circumstances which would render any particulars
included in the financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate.

ipione APM A Hughes Y
isyioner of Police Director, Finance and Business Services
™" September 2014 Dated: 16™ September 2014

l
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NSW POLICE FORCE
Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2014

Notes Actual Budget Actual
2014 2014 2013
$' 000 $' 000 $' 000
Expenses excluding losses
Operating expenses
Employee related 2(a) 2,820,039 2,766,228 2,515,220
Other operating expenses 2(b) 455,379 443,511 458,808
Depreciation and amortisation 2(c) 139,911 159,738 136,497
Grants and subsidies 2(d) 9,187 9,445 9,335
Finance costs 2(e) 10,907 10,701 11,533
Other expenses 2(f) 2,236 2,656 2,324
Total Expenses excluding losses 3,437,659 3,392,279 3,133,717
Rewvenue
Sale of goods and services 3(a) 38,036 33,343 32,990
Investment revenue 3(b) 3,743 2,773 2,641
Grants and contributions 3(c) 3,137,574 3,137,062 3,079,404
Acceptance by the Crown Entity of employee benefits
and other liabilities 3(d) 192,263 168,182 112,740
Other revenue 3(e) 38,768 31,513 41,804
Total Revenue 3,410,384 3,372,873 3,269,579
Gain/ (loss) on disposal 4 (3,096) (918) (3,826)
Other gains / (Iosses) 5 (541) (10) (1,006)
Net result 20 (30,912) (20,334) 131,030
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to net result
Net increase/(decrease) in property, plant and
equipment revaluation surplus 13,318 - 32,338
Net increase/(decrease) in assets held for sale
revaluation surplus - - (704)
Net change in the revaluation surplus arising froma
change in restoration liability 88 - 1,792
Total other comprehensive income 13,406 - 33,426
TOTAL COMPREHENS IVE INCOME (17,506) (20,334) 164,456

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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NSW POLICE FORCE
Statement of financial position as at 30 June 2014

Notes Actual Budget Actual
2014 2014 2013
$' 000 $' 000 $' 000
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7 124,940 78,288 98,628
Receivables 8 76,979 70,735 87,550
Non-current assets held for sale - 1,791 -
Total Current Assets 201,919 150,814 186,178
Non-Current Assets
Receivables 8 20,600 30,839 37,700
Property, Plant and Equipment
- Land and Buildings 9 1,261,617 1,256,919 1,261,144
- Plant and Equipment 9 312,565 264,208 294,668
Total Property, Plant and Equipment 1,574,182 1,521,127 1,555,812
Intangible assets 10 102,643 107,501 119,322
Total Non-Current Assets 1,697,425 1,659,467 1,712,834
Total Assets 1,899,344 1,810,281 1,899,012
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables 13 100,721 110,138 83,752
Borrowings 14 8,989 8,989 7,811
Provisions 15 404,043 371,013 386,488
Other 16 326 149 157
Total Current Liabilities 514,079 490,289 478,208
Non-Current Liabilities
Borrowings 14 146,057 146,057 155,046
Provisions 15 66,040 70,554 75,014
Other 16 284 284 354
Total Non-Current Liabilities 212,381 216,895 230,414
Total Liabilities 726,460 707,184 708,622
Net Assets 1,172,884 1,103,097 1,190,390
EQUITY
Reserves 478,639 446,449 471,775
Accumulated funds 694,245 656,648 718,615
Total Equity 1,172,884 1,103,097 1,190,390

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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NSW POLICE FORCE
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2014

Asset Held
Asset for Sale
Accumulated  Revaluation Revaluation
Notes Funds Surplus Surplus Total
$' 000 $' 000 $' 000 $' 000
Balance as at 1 July 2013 718,615 471,775 - 1,190,390
Restated total equity at 1 July 2013 718,615 471,775 - 1,190,390
Net result for the year (30,912) - - (30,912)
Other comprehensive income:
Net increase / (decrease) in property,
plant and equipment 9 - 13,318 - 13,318
Change in restoration liability - 88 - 88
Other:
Transfer within reserve - - - -
Asset revaluation surplus balance
transferred to accumulated funds on
disposal of asset 6,542 (6,542) - -
Total other comprehensive income 6,542 6,864 - 13,406
Total comprehensive income for
the year (24,370) 6,864 - (17,506)
Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners - - - -
Balance as at 30 June 2014 694,245 478,639 - 1,172,884
Balance as at 1 July 2012 585,485 439,839 610 1,025,934
Restated total equity at 1 July 2012 585,485 439,839 610 1,025,934
Net result for the year 131,030 - - 131,030
Other comprehensive income:
Net increase / (decrease) in property,
plant and equipment 9 - 31,634 - 31,634
Change in restoration liability - 1,792 - 1,792
Other:
Transfer within reserve - 704 (704) -
Asset revaluation surplus balance
transferred to accumulated funds on
disposal of asset 2,100 (2,194) 94 -
Total other comprehensive income 2,100 31,936 (610) 33,426
Total comprehensive income for
the year 133,130 31,936 (610) 164,456
Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners - - - -
Balance as at 30 June 2013 718,615 471,775 - 1,190,390
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NSW POLICE FORCE
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2014

Notes Actual Budget Actual
2014 2014 2013
$' 000 $' 000 $' 000

CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employee Related (2,592,552) (2,577,969) (2,425,671)
Grants and subsidies (9,187) (9,445) (9,335)
Finance Costs (10,344) (10,701) (10,790)
Other (572,054) (515,494) (612,123)
Total Payments (3,184,137) (3,113,609) (3,057,919)
Receipts
Sale of goods and services 33,974 25,493 32,515
Interest received 3,086 3,313 2,703
Grants and contributions 3,138,622 3,136,679 3,079,214
Cash transfers to the Crown Entity (1,104) - -
Other 178,886 93,154 72,085
Total Receipts 3,353,464 3,258,639 3,186,517
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES 20 169,327 145,030 128,598
CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceed fromsale of Land and Building
and Plant and Equipment 4 904 1,734 2,396
Purchases of Land and Building and Plant and Equipment (129,901) (132,551) (115,413)
Purchase of Intangibles (6,207) (13,734) (27,247)
NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (135,204) (144,551) (140,264)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of borrowings and advances (7,811) (7,811) (6,665)
Proceeds from borrowings and advances - - 867
NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (7,811) (7,811) (5,798)
NET INCREASE/ (DECREASE) IN CASH 26,312 (7,332) (17,464)
Opening cash and cash equivalents 98,628 85,620 116,092
CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 7 124,940 78,288 98,628

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Supplementary financial statements

Service group statements for the year ended 30 June 2014

Service Group 39.1* | Service Group 39.2* | Service Group 39.3' | Service Group 39.4* Not Attributable? Total
EXPENSES & INCOME 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Expenses excluding losses
Operating expenses

= Employee related 1,441,979 1,330,175 884,722 747,847 300,269 261,175 193,069 176,023 - -l 2,820,039| 2,515,220

= Other operating expenses 232,871 243,116 142,877 136,684 48,451 46,836 31,180 32,172 - - 455,379 458,808
Depreciation and amortisation 71,946 72,615 44,142 40,828 14,190 13,445 9,633 9,609 - - 139,911 136,497
Grants and subsidies 4,723 4,965 2,899 2,794 932 919 633 657 - - 9,187 9,335
Finance costs 5,609 6,136 3,441 3,449 1,106 1,136 751 812 - - 10,907 11,533
Other expenses 1,150 1,236 705 695 227 229 154 164 - - 2,236 2,324
Total expenses excluding losses 1,758,278 1,658,243] 1,078,786 932,297 365,175 323,740 235,420 219,437 - -| 3,437,659| 3,133,717
Revenue
Sale of goods and services 19,618 17,551 12,036 9,867 3,755 3,250 2,627 2,322 - - 38,036 32,990
Investment revenue 1,924 1,406 1,181 789 380 260 258 186 - - 3,743 2,641
CGrants and contributions 7,659 6,152 4,697 3,457 20,006 18,920 1,025 814] 3,104,187| 3,050,061 3,137,574| 3,079,404
Acceptance by the Crown Entity of employee
benefits and other liabilities 98,867 59,977 60,659 33,721 19,500 11,105 13,237 7,937 - - 192,263 112,740
Other revenue 19,935 22,239 12,231 12,504 3,933 4,118 2,669 2,943 - - 38,768 41,804
Total Revenue 148,003 107,325 90,804 60,338 47,574 37,653 19,816 14,202] 3,104,187 3,050,061] 3,410,384| 3,269,579
Gain / (loss) on disposal (1,593) (2,036) (976) (1,144) (314) (377) (213) (269) - - (3,096) (3,826)
Other gains / (losses) (278) (535) (171) (301) (55) (99) (37) (71) - - (541) (1,006)
Net result (1,612,146)((1,553,489)] (989,129)| (873,404)] (317,970)| (286,563)] (215,854)[ (205,575)] 3,104,187| 3,050,061 (30,912) 131,030
Other Comprehensive Income
Increase / (decrease) in revaluation surplus - - - - - - - - 13,318 32,338 13,318 32,338
Increase / (decrease) in assets held for sale
revaluation surplus - - - - - - - - - (704) - (704)
Net change in the asset revaluation surplus arising
from a change in restoration liability - - - - - - - - 88 1,792 88 1,792
Total Other Comprehensive Income - - - - - - - - 13,406 33,426 13,406 33,426
TO TAL COMPREHENSIVE INCO ME (1,612,146)((1,553,489)] (989,129)| (873,404)] (317,970)| (286,563)] (215,854)] (205,575)] 3,117,593 3,083,487] (17,506) 164,456
1. The names and purposes of each service group are summarised in Note 6.
2. Grant received from the Department of Justice (formerly Department of Police and Justice) is made on an entity basis and not to individual service groups. Consequently, grant from the Department of Justice
is included in the 'Not Attributable' column. Revaluation surplus is also unlikely to be attributable to individual service groups.
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Service group statements for the year ended 30 June 2014 (continued)

Service Group 39.1! Service Group 39.2' | Service Group 39.3* | Service Group 39.4" Not Attributable Total

ASSETS & LIABILITIES 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - - - - - 124,940 98,628 124,940 98,628
Receivables 43,459 48,301 20,611 21,899 8,777 13,249 4,132 4,101 - - 76,979 87,550
Total current assets 43,459 48,301 20,611 21,899 8,777 13,249 4,132 4,101 124,940 98,628 201,919 186,178
Non-current Assets
Receivables 10,594 20,057 6,499 11,276 2,089 3,712 1,418 2,655 - - 20,600 37,700
Property, plant and equipment 1,002,084 903,993 439,308 409,834 47,517 165,244 85,273 76,741 - -l 1,574,182| 1,555,812
Intangibles 65,340 69,331 28,645 31,432 3,098 12,673 5,560 5,886 - - 102,643 119,322
Total non-current assets 1,078,018 993,381 474,452 452,542 52,704 181,629 92,251 85,282 - -l 1,697,425| 1,712,834
Total Assets 1,121,477| 1,041,682 495,063 474,441 61,481 194,878 96,383 89,383 124,940 98,628] 1,899,344 1,899,012
Current liabilities
Payables 51,793 44,557 31,778 25,049 10,215 8,247 6,935 5,899 - - 100,721 83,752
Borrowings 4,419 3,827 4,417 3,852 91 77 62 55 - - 8,989 7,811
Provisions 207,769 205,613 127,476 115,594 40,979 38,058 27,819 27,223 - - 404,043 386,488
Other 65 83 40 47 13 16 9 11 199 - 326 157
Total current liabilities 264,046 254,080 163,711 144,542 51,298 46,398 34,825 33,188 199 - 514,079 478,208
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 71,794 75,958 71,776 76,469 1,481 1,527 1,006 1,092 - - 146,057 155,046
Provisions 33,959 39,907 20,836 22,436 6,698 7,387 4,547 5,284 - - 66,040 75,014
Other 145 188 90 106 29 35 20 25 - - 284 354
Total Non-current liabilities 105,898 116,053 92,702 99,011 8,208 8,949 5,573 6,401 - - 212,381 230,414
Total Liabilities 369,944 370,133 256,413 243,553 59,506 55,347 40,398 39,589 199 - 726,460 708,622
NET ASSETS 751,533 671,549 238,650 230,888 1,975 139,531 55,985 49,794 124,741 98,628] 1,172,884| 1,190,390

1. The names and purposes of each service group are summarised in Note 6.
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Service group statements for the year ended 30 June 2014 (continued)

Service Group 39.1' | Service Group 39.2" | Service Group 39.3' | Service Group 39.4' | Not Attributable Total
ADMINISTERED EXPENSES & INCOME 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
$'000 $'000 $°'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Administered Expenses - - - - - - - - - - - -
Administered Income
Transfer receipts
Consolidated Fund
= Taxes, fees and fines - - - - - - - - 17,089 16,941 17,089 16,941
= Other - - - - - - - - 23 7 23 7
Total Administered Income - - - - - - - - 17,112 16,948 17,112 16,948
Administered Income less Expenses - - - - - - - - 17,112 16,948 17,112 16,948

1. The names and purposes of each service group are summarised in Note 6.

Administered assets and liabilities are disclosed in Note 23.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

©)

®

Reporting Entity

The NSW Police Force is a NSW government entity. The NSW Police Force is a not-for-profit entity (as profit is not
its principal objective) and it has no cash generating units. The reporting entity is consolidated as part of the NSW
Total State Sector Accounts.

These financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014 have been authorised for issue by the Commissioner on
16™ September 2014.

Basis of Preparation

The NSW Police Force's financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared on

an accrual basis and in accordance with:

. applicable Australian Accounting Standards (which include Australian Accounting Interpretations);

. the requirements of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 and Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2010 and

o the Financial Reporting Directions published in the Financial Reporting Code for NSW General Government
Sector Entities or issued by the Treasurer.

Property, plant and equipment, and assets held for sale are measured at fair value. Employee benefits are measured at
present value. Other financial statements items are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention.

Judgements, key assumptions and estimations that management has made, are disclosed in the relevant notes to the
financial statements as follows:

. Fixed assets depreciation Note 1 (i) (V)

Employee Benefits and other provisions Note 1 (j) (iv)

Non renewal benefit Note 1 (j) (iv) (e)

Death and disability Note 1 (j) (iv) (f)

Service group statements allocation methodology Note 1 (0)

All amounts are rounded to the nearest one thousand dollars and are expressed in Australian currency.

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements and notes comply with Australian Accounting Standards, which include Australian
Accounting Interpretations.

Administered Activities

The NSW Police Force administers, but does not control, certain activities on behalf of the Crown Entity. It is
accountable for the transactions relating to those administered activities but does not have the discretion to deploy the
resources for the achievement of the NSW Police Force’s own objectives.

Transactions and balances relating to the administered activities are not recognised as the NSW Police Force’s
income, assets and liabilities, but are disclosed in the accompanying notes as "Administered Income", “Administered
Assets” and “Administered Liabilities”; refer Note 23 and Note 24.

The accrual basis of accounting and applicable accounting standards has been adopted.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred, in accordance with Treasury’s
Mandate to not-for-profit general government sector agencies.

Insurance

The insurance activities of the NSW Police Force are conducted through NSW Treasury Managed Fund Scheme of
self-insurance for Government entities. The expense (premium) is determined by the Fund Manager and is based on
past claims experience.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)  Accounting for the Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except that the:
. amount of GST incurred by the NSW Police Force as a purchaser that is not recoverable from the Australian
Taxation Office is recognised as part of an asset’s cost of acquisition or as part of an item of expense; and
. receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. However, the GST components of cash flows
arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the Australian Taxation Office
are classified as operating cash flows.

(h)  Income Recognition

Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration or contribution received or receivable. Additional comments
regarding the accounting policies for the recognition of income are discussed below.

(i) Grants and Contributions
Except as specified below, grants and contributions from other bodies (including grants and donations) are
recognised as income when the NSW Police Force obtains control over the assets comprising the

appropriations/contributions. Control over grants and contributions are normally obtained upon the receipt of
cash.

The unspent funds on the protected items which are grant funded by the Justice (formerly Police and Justice)
Cluster’s Principal Department, the Department of Justice (formerly Department of Police and Justice), are
recognised as liabilities rather than as income, as the authority to spend the money lapses and the unspent
amount must be repaid to the principal department.

The liability is disclosed in Note 16 as part of 'Current Liabilities - Other'. The amount will be repaid and the
liability will be extinguished next financial year.

(if) Sale of Goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised as revenue when the NSW Police Force transfers the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the assets.

(iii) Rendering of Services
Revenue is recognised when the service is provided or by reference to the stage of completion (based on labour
hours incurred to date).

(iv)  Investment Revenue
Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method as set out in AASB 139 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

(i) Assets

(i)  Acquisitions of Assets
Assets acquired are initially recognised at cost. Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair
value of the other consideration given to acquire the asset at the time of its acquisition or construction or,
where applicable, the amount attributed to that asset when initially recognised in accordance with the specific
requirements of other Australian Accounting Standards.

Assets acquired at no cost, or for nominal consideration, are initially recognised as assets and revenues at their
fair value at acquisition date (see also assets transferred as a result of an equity transfer — Note 1 (m)).

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market
participants at measurement date.

Where payment for an asset is deferred beyond normal credit terms, its cost is the cash price equivalent; i.e.
deferred payment amount is effectively discounted at an asset-specific rate.

(if)  Capitalisation Thresholds
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets costing $5,000 and above individually are capitalised. In
addition, assets forming part of a network (including printers) and communications systems are capitalised
regardless of cost.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Assets (continued)

(iii) Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment

The NSW Police Force’s property portfolio consists of land, police residences, police stations and other
operational buildings. Physical non-current assets are valued in accordance with the "Valuation of Physical
Non-Current Assets at Fair Value" Policy and Guidelines Paper (TPP 14-01). This policy adopts fair value in
accordance with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement, AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment and AASB
140 Investment Property. Also refer Note 1 (i) (x) on investment property.

Property, plant and equipment is measured at the highest and best use by the market participants that is
physically possible, legally permissible and financially feasible. The highest and best use must be available at a
period that is not remote and take into account the characteristics of the asset being measured, including any
socio-political restrictions imposed by government. In most cases, after taking into account these
considerations, the highest and best use is the existing use. In limited circumstances, the highest and best use
may be a feasible alternative use, where there are no restrictions on use or where there is a feasible higher
restricted alternative use.

Fair value of residential property, aircraft and vessels is based on a market participant’s perspective, using
valuation techniques (market approach, cost approach, income approach) that maximise relevant observable
inputs and minimise unobservable inputs. Also refer Note 11 and Note 25 for further information regarding fair
value.

Police Stations and associated administrative areas are valued based on the estimated current replacement cost
of the most appropriate modern equivalent replacement facility having a similar service potential to the
existing asset. Land is valued at the highest and best use basis, subject to any restrictions or enhancements
since acquisition. The land component of the property portfolio and police residences has been revalued with
market value as the basis for revaluation.

Land and buildings are revalued over a three-year cycle. The NSW Police Force undertakes this progressive
method of revaluation in accordance with Treasury Guidelines and AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment.
The last such revaluation was completed on 30 April 2014 and was based on an independent assessment. The
2014 revaluation is the second in the current three-year cycle. In 2014, the land and building assets in the
Western region were revalued. To ensure that the land and building assets not included in the 2014 revaluation
are held at fair value at 30 June 2014, valuation factors were obtained from accredited valuers. There was no
material difference between the values recorded and the adjusted values had the valuation factors been applied.
All land and building revaluation, and the valuation factors are undertaken by accredited valuers, engaged by
the external property management service provider, to ensure consistency.

Non-specialised assets with short useful lives are measured at depreciated historical cost, as a surrogate for fair
value.

Heritage buildings are valued at a premium rate taking into consideration the highest and best use of the
property.

When revaluing non-current assets using the cost approach, the gross amount and the related accumulated
depreciation are separately restated.

For other assets valued using other valuation techniques, any balances of accumulated depreciation at the
revaluation date in respect of those assets are credited to the asset accounts to which they relate. The net asset
accounts are then increased or decreased by the revaluation increments or decrements.

Revaluation increments are credited directly to the revaluation surplus, except that, to the extent that an
increment reverses a revaluation decrement for that class of asset, previously recognised as an expense, the
increment is recognised immediately as revenue.

Revaluation decrements are recognised immediately as expenses, except that, to the extent that a credit balance
exists in the revaluation surplus for the same class of assets, they are debited directly to the revaluation surplus.

As a not-for-profit entity, revaluation increments and decrements are offset against one another within a class
of non-current assets, but not otherwise. Where an asset previously revalued is disposed of, any balance
remaining in the revaluation surplus for that asset is transferred to accumulated funds.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(iv)

v)

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

As a not-for-profit entity with no cash generating units, impairment under AASB 136 Impairment of Assets is
unlikely to arise. As property, plant and equipment is carried at fair value, impairment can only arise in the
rare circumstances where the costs of disposal are material. Specifically, impairment is unlikely for not-for-
profit entities given that AASB 136 modifies the recoverable amount test for non-cash generating assets of not-
for-profit entities to the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and depreciated replacement cost, where
depreciated replacement cost is also fair value.

Depreciation and Amortisation of Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation/amortisation is provided for on a straight-line basis for all depreciable assets so as to write off the
depreciable/amortised amount, as consumed over its useful life, to the NSW Police Force. Land is not a
depreciable asset.

All material separately identifiable components of assets are recognised and depreciated /amortised over their
useful lives. If the asset cannot be separately identified, even though it is an integral part or component of a
larger asset, then it is considered to be a whole of an asset and is depreciated /amortised over the useful life.

Current depreciation/amortisation rates are as follows:

Category Asset Category Name Rate
A Aircraft/aviation 15%
B Buildings & improvements useful life varies 3 to 58years
C Computers — not PC’s 25%
Cl1 Computers — PC’s 20%
D Computer integrated software 10%
E Furniture & fittings 10%
F Plant & equipment 10%
G Marine equipment 5%
H Transport equipment 15%
I Office equipment 10%
J Scientific apparatus 15%
K Radio communications equipment 15%
M Firearms and dangerous weapons 10%
N Musical instruments 10%
P Livestock 12.5%
Q Leased buildings lease term per asset

(vi) Major Inspection Costs
When each major inspection is performed, the labour cost of performing major inspections for faults is recognised in
the carrying amount of an asset as a replacement of a part, if the recognition criteria are satisfied.

(vii) Restoration Costs

The estimated cost of dismantling and removing an asset and restoring the site is included in the cost of an asset, to
the extent it is recognised as a liability.

(viii) Maintenance
Day-to-day servicing costs or maintenance are charged as expenses as incurred, except where they relate to the
replacement of a part or component of an asset, in which case the costs are capitalised and depreciated.

(ix) Leased Assets
A distinction is made between finance leases, which effectively transfer from the lessor to the lessee, substantially all

risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased assets, and operating leases under which the lessor effectively
retains all such risks and benefits.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(ix) Leased Assets (continued)

Where a non-current asset is acquired by means of a finance lease, at the commencement of the lease term, the asset
is recognised at its fair value or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, at the inception of the
lease. The corresponding liability is established at the same amount. Lease payments are allocated between the
principal component and the interest expense.

Operating lease payments are charged to the statement of comprehensive income in the periods in which they are
incurred.

(x) Investment Properties
The NSW Police Force receives rental income from accommodation provided to police officers, and other agencies.
These properties were originally acquired for the NSW Police Force administrative purposes and not for rental or
capital appreciation; as such they do not satisfy the criteria of investment properties.

(xi) Intangible Assets
The NSW Police Force recognises intangible assets only if it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the NSW Police Force and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are measured initially at
cost. Where an asset is acquired at no or nominal cost, the cost is its fair value as at the date of acquisition.

All research costs are expensed. Development costs are only capitalised when certain criteria are met.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be finite. Intangible assets are subsequently measured at fair
value only if there is an active market. As there is no active market for the NSW Police Force’s intangible assets, the
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation.

The NSW Police Force’s intangible assets are amortised using the straight-line method over a period of 10 years for
computer software.

Intangible assets are tested for impairment where an indicator of impairment exists. However, as a not-for-profit
entity with no cash generating units, impairment under AASB 136 Impairment of Assets is unlikely to arise (refer to
Note 1(i) (iv)).

(xii) Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. These financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, usually based on the transaction cost or
face value. Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less an allowance for
any impairment of receivables. Any changes are recognised in the net result for the year when impaired,
derecognised or through the amortisation process.

Short-term receivables with no stated interest rate are measured at the original invoice amount where the effect of
discounting is immaterial.

(xiii) Impairment of Financial Assets
All financial assets, except those measured at fair value through profit and loss, are subject to annual review for
impairment. An allowance for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the entity will not be
able to collect all amounts due.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the allowance is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The
amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the net result for the year.

When an available for sale financial asset is impaired, the amount of the cumulative loss is removed from equity and
recognised in the net result for the year, based on the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in the net result
for the year.

Any reversals of impairment losses are reversed through the net result for the year where there is objective evidence.
Reversals of impairment losses of financial assets carried at amortised cost cannot result in a carrying amount that
exceeds what the carrying amount would have been had there not been an impairment loss.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(xiv) De-recognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

(xv)

(xvi)

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire; or if

the NSW Police Force transfers the financial asset:

e where substantially all the risks and rewards have been transferred; or

e where the NSW Police Force has not transferred substantially all the risks and rewards, if the NSW Police
Force has not retained control.

Where the NSW Police Force has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards or
transferred control, the asset is recognised to the extent of the NSW Police Force’s continuing involvement in the
asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or
expired.

Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

The NSW Police Force has certain non-current assets classified as held for sale, where their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction, not through continuing use. Non-current assets held for sale are
recognised at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs of disposal. These assets are not depreciated
while they are classified as held for sale.

Trust Funds

The NSW Police Force receives monies in a trustee capacity as set out in Note 22. As the NSW Police Force
performs only a custodial role with these monies, and because the monies cannot be used for the achievement of the
NSW Police Force's own objectives, these funds are not recognised in the financial statements.

(xvii) Other Assets

Other assets are recognised on a historic cost basis.

Liabilities

(i) Payables

(i)

(iii)

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the NSW Police Force and other amounts.
Payables are recognised initially at fair value, usually based on the transaction cost or face value. Subsequent
measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Short-term payables with no stated interest
rate are measured at the original invoice amount where the effect of discounting is immaterial.

Borrowings

Loans are not held for trading or designated at fair value through profit or loss and are recognised at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method. Gains or losses are recognised in the net result for the year on de-
recognition.

The finance lease liability is determined in accordance with AASB 117 Leases.

Financial Guarantees

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original
or modified terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a liability at the time the guarantee is issued and initially recognised
at fair value plus, in the case of financial guarantees not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs, where material. After initial recognition, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount
determined in accordance with AASB 137 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.

The NSW Police Force did not provide any financial guarantee contracts in the years ended 30 June 2014 and 30
June 2013.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(iv)

Employee Benefits and Other Provisions

(a) Salaries and Wages, Annual Leave, Sick Leave and On-costs

Salaries and wages (including non-monetary benefits), that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after
the end of the period in which the employees render the service are recognised and measured at the undiscounted
amounts of the benefits.

Annual leave is not expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual reporting period
in which the employees render the related service. As such, it is required to be measured at present value in
accordance with AASB 119 Employee Benefits (although short-cut methods are permitted). Actuarial advice
obtained by Treasury has confirmed that the use of a nominal approach plus the annual leave on annual leave
liability (using 7.9% of the nominal value of annual leave) can be used to approximate the present value of the
annual leave liability. NSW Police Force has assessed the actuarial advice based on the entity’s circumstances and
has determined that the effect of discounting is immaterial to annual leave.

Unused non-vesting sick leave does not give rise to a liability as it is not considered probable that sick leave taken in
the future will be greater than the benefits accrued in the future.

(b) Long Service Leave and Superannuation

The liabilities for long service leave and defined benefit superannuation of the NSW Police Force are assumed by
the Crown Entity. The NSW Police Force accounts for the liability as having been extinguished; resulting in the
amount assumed being shown as part of the non-monetary revenue item described as "Acceptance by the Crown
Entity of employee benefits and other liabilities™.

Long service leave is measured at present value in accordance with AASB 119 Employee Benefits. This is based on
the application of certain factors (specified in NSWTC14/04) to employees with five or more years of service, using
current rates of pay. These factors were determined based on an actuarial review to approximate present value.

The superannuation expense for the financial year is determined by using the formulae specified in the Treasurer's
Directions. The expense for certain superannuation schemes (i.e. Basic Benefit and First State Super) is calculated
as a percentage of the employees’ salary. For other superannuation schemes (i.e. State Superannuation Scheme and
State Authorities Superannuation Scheme), the expense is calculated as a multiple of the employees’ superannuation
contributions.

(c) Consequential on-costs

Consequential costs to employment are recognised as liabilities and expenses where the employee benefits to which
they relate have been recognised. This includes outstanding amounts of payroll tax, workers’ compensation
insurance premiums and fringe benefits tax.

(d) Other Provisions
Other provisions exist when: the NSW Police Force has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a
past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted at 3.68%, which is the 10 year
government bond rate at 20 June 2014, which reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability.

(e) Non-Renewal Benefit

Commissioned Police officers employed under fixed term appointment contracts are entitled to the payment of non-
renewal benefits, equal to 12.5% of the accumulated salary earnings for each completed term of appointment. Such
benefits are payable only on the officer's termination from the NSW Police Force.

The liability for non-renewal benefits is recognised from the beginning of the first fixed term appointment of each
officer and is measured on the accumulated salary earnings of each officer at reporting date. An actuarial assessment
of this liability is performed every three years.

The Non-Renewal Benefit liability is measured at present value in accordance with AASB 119 Employee Benefits.
A shorthand method, based on the actuarial report obtained as at 30 June 2012, was applied to calculate the current
liability. This calculation is based on the application of a discount factor of 0.84 to total non-renewal benefit
liability.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

v)

(e) Non-Renewal Benefit (continued)
The next actuarial assessment of this liability is due no later than 30 June 2015.
The liability is disclosed in Note 15 as part of ‘Current / Non-Current Liabilities — Provisions’.

() The NSW Police Force Blue Ribbon Super Scheme

The valuation of NSW Police Force’s self-insured liabilities under the NSW Police Death and Disability Award
Insurance scheme as at 30 June 2014 is based on data as at 30 June 2014.

The NSW Police Force Blue Ribbon Super Scheme facilitates Death and Total and Permanent Incapacity benefits
(TPD), and Partial and Permanent Disability benefits (PPD) to eligible police officers of the NSW Police Force from
23 June 2005 until its replacement by the Police Amendment (Death and Disability) Bill 2011 (2011 Bill) which
was approved by Parliament in November 2011.

Under the 2011 Bill, the new death and TPD benefits were effective from 20 January 2012 while the new Income
Protection (IP) benefits were effective for any claim that did not meet the transitional arrangements to be eligible for
2005 PPD benefits on 30 November 2011.

These arrangements are provided to a police officer in the event that he or she suffered an on duty or off duty injury
which results in the death or total and permanent incapacity or partial and permanent incapacity of the officer. The
NSW Police Force (employer) and police officers (employees) make contributions as required by these Awards.

The NSW Police Force’s self-insured liability for PPD benefits (2005 Award) and income protection (IP) benefits
are deemed “termination benefits” under AASB 119 Employee Benefits. The liability is measured in accordance
with AASB 119 and is consistent with AASB 137.

The quantum of the NSW Police Force’s total self-insured liability exposure is determined based on an independent
actuarial assessment.

The assessment approximates the potential liability of PPD and IP as well as death and TPD that are not covered by
the insurer, and the recovery of payments made under a PPD claim when the affected officer submits a TPD claim in
finalisation of compensation for an injury. The valuation also includes the potential risk sharing liabilities payable to
the insurers (MetLife and TAL) if the insured death and TPD claims experience is above a specified level.

As at 30 June 2014 the estimated recovery exceeded the estimated liability.

The liability has been discounted at an assumed government bond rate of 2.6% with a term of 2.6 years. The largest
component of the liabilities is the 2011 Award income protection benefits and these have a maximum payment
period of five years for claims with a date of injury prior to 1 October 2013 and seven years for claims with a date of
injury from 1 October 2013.

The liability is disclosed in Note 15 as part of ‘Current / Non-Current Liabilities — Provisions” and the recovery is
disclosed in Note 8 as part of ‘Current / Non-Current Assets — Receivables’.

Lease Incentives

Lease incentives payable or receivable under operating leases are recognised initially as assets or liabilities. The
incentive is subsequently amortised over the lease term, as a reduction of rental income or rental expenses. The
straight-line method is adopted for reduction of rental income and rental expense.

Fair value hierarchy

A number of the NSW Police Force’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for

both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. When measuring fair value, the valuation technique used

maximises the use of relevant observable inputs and minimises the use of unobservable inputs. Under AASB 13, the

NSW Police Force categorises, for disclosure purposes, the valuation techniques based on the inputs used in the

valuation techniques as follows:

e Level 1 - quoted prices in active markets for identical assets / liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date.

e Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable, either directly or
indirectly.

e Level 3 - inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The NSW Police Force recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting

period during which the change has occurred. Refer Note 11 and Note 25 for further disclosures regarding fair value

measurements of financial and non-financial assets.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

V)

(m)

(n)

(0)

Equity and Reserves
(i) Revaluation surplus

The revaluation surplus is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of  non-current assets. This
accords with the agency’s policy on the revaluation of property, plant and equipment as discussed in Note 1(m).

(if) Accumulated Funds
The category ‘Accumulated Funds’ includes all current and prior period retained funds.

(iii)  Separate reserve accounts are recognised in the financial statements only if such accounts are required by
specific legislation or Australian Accounting Standards (e.g. asset revaluation reserve and foreign currency translation
reserve).

Equity Transfers

The transfer of net assets between agencies as a result of an administrative restructure, transfers of service groups
functions and parts thereof between NSW public sector agencies and ‘equity appropriations’ (refer Note 1(1)) are
designated or required by Accounting Standards to be treated as contributions by owners and recognised as an
adjustment to “Accumulated Funds”. This treatment is consistent with AASB 1004 Contributions and Australian
Accounting Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities.

Transfers arising from an administrative restructure involving not-for-profit entities and for-profit government
departments are recognised at the amount at which the assets and liabilities were recognised by the transferor
immediately prior to the restructure. Subject to below, in most instances this will approximate fair value.

All other equity transfers are recognised at fair value, except for intangibles. Where an intangible has been recognised
at (amortised) cost by the transferor because there is no active market, the agency recognises the asset at the
transferor’s carrying amount. Where the transferor is prohibited from recognising internally generated intangibles, the
agency does not recognise that asset.

Budgeted Amounts

The budgeted amounts are drawn from the original budgeted financial statements presented to Parliament in respect of
the reporting period, as adjusted for section 24 of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 where there has been a
transfer of functions between departments. Other amendments made to the budget are not reflected in the budgeted
amounts.

Service Group Statements Allocation Methodology

The statement of comprehensive income line items within the Service Group Statements are allocated across the NSW
Police Force service groups where deemed appropriate. The methodology is primarily based on the information from
the rostering system, which is attributed to activities, which in turn are attributed to service groups. The major cost
driver is labour hours for operational policing centres, which represents the fact that labour costs are the major cost of
the NSW Police Force. Other Specialist policing centres are more easily aligned to service delivery and are allocated
according to function from cost centre reports. Non policing corporate services functions are allocated on the basis
determined by the policing cost centres. Where specific line items can be allocated to a specific service group, this
has been done. Government contributions and Equity cannot be reliably allocated across service groups and are shown
as “not attributed”.

The rostering system and the associated activity based costing system is the most reliable information available, given
that labour hours is the primary cost driver and systems providing other cost driver information are limited. The
statement of financial position line items have been generally allocated as follows: Property, Plant and Equipment has
been grouped by organisational unit and allocated across service groups applying different percentages to that used in
the statement of comprehensive income. The finance lease for Police Headquarters has been based on floor space and
spread across service groups accordingly. Other assets and liabilities have generally been allocated similarly to the line
items in the statement of comprehensive income, except where specific material items can be specifically identified to
a specific service group. Cash and cash equivalents cannot be reliably allocated across service groups and are shown
as “not attributed”.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Comparative Information
Except when an Australian Accounting Standard permits or requires otherwise, comparative information is presented
in respect of the previous period for all amounts reported in the financial statements.

The following comparatives have been reclassified due to additional categories in revenue and payables as at 30 June
2014.

Financial instruments market risk for receivables is deemed to be nil since no interest is earned on receivables.
Financial instruments market risk for borrowings is deemed to be nil as interest rates are fixed for the duration of the
borrowing term.

Audited Financial

Reclassified in Statements
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Note 3 Revenue
Note 3 (e)  Other revenue
Other 1,175 1,406
Bad debts recovered 231 -
1,406 1,406
Note 13 Current Liabilities-Payables
Various sundry accruals 900 4,460
Uncoded expense accruals 183 -
Capital expense accruals 3,377 -
4,460 4,460
Note 25 Financial Instruments
Note 25 (d) Market Risk
Financial assets:
Receivables
Carrying amount 17,208 17,208
-1% Profit - (172)
-1% Equity - 172)
+1% Profit - 172
+1% Equity - 172
Financial liabilities:
Borrowings 162,857 162,857
Carrying amount - (1,629)
-1% Profit - (1,629)
-1% Equity - 1629
+1% Profit - 1629

+1% Equity
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@) Changes in accounting policy, including new or revised Australian Accounting Standards

(i) Effective for the first time in 2013-14

The accounting policies applied in 2013-14 are consistent with those of the previous financial year

except as a result of the following new or revised Australian Accounting Standards that have been

applied for the first time in 2013-14: AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement and AASB 119 (revised 2011)

Employee Benefits.

The impact of these Standards in the period of initial application includes:

e AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement - AASB 13 establishes a single source of guidance under
Australian Accounting Standards for all fair value measurements. AASB 13 does not change when
an entity is required to use fair value but rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value
under Australian Accounting Standards. AASB 13 defines fair value as an exit price. AASB 13 also
requires additional disclosures. Application of AASB 13 has not materially impacted the fair value
measurements of the NSW Police Force. Additional disclosures where required, are provided in the
individual notes relating to the assets whose fair values were determined. Fair value hierarchy is
provided in Note 11.

e AASB 119 Employee Benefits - The NSW Police Force applied AASB 119 (Revised 2011)
retrospectively in the current period in accordance with the transitional provisions set out in the
revised standard. Annual leave balances are not expected to be settled wholly within the months
from the end of the reporting period, and are measured as an “Other long term benefit”. Application
of AASB 119 (Revised 2011) has not materially impacted the opening statement of financial
position of the earliest comparative period presented (1 July 2013).

(i) 1ssued but not yet effective

NSW public sector entities are not permitted to early adopt new Australian Accounting Standards, unless
Treasury determines otherwise.

The following new Australian Accounting Standards have not been applied and are not yet effective.

e AASB 9, AASB 2010-7 and AASB 2012-6 regarding financial instruments

e AASB 10 (NFP) Consolidated Financial Statements (NFP entities only)

e AASB 11 (NFP) Joint Arrangements (NFP entities only)

e AASB 12 (NFP) Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (NFP entities only)

e AASB 127 (NFP) Separate Financial Statements (NFP entities only)

e AASB 128 (NFP) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (NFP entities only)

e AASB 1031 Materiality

e AASB 1055 and AASB 2013-1 regarding budgetary reporting

e AASB 2011-7 (NFP) regarding consolidation and joint arrangements (NFP entities only)

e AASB 2012-3 regarding offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

e AASB 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136 — Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non- Financial
Assets

e AASB 2013-4 regarding financial instruments — Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

e AASB 2013-5 regarding accounting for Investment Entities

e AASB 2013-6 regarding Reduced Disclosure Requirements

e AASB 2013-7 regarding accounting for life insurance contracts

e AASB 2013-8 regarding Australian Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit Entities — Control
and Structured Entities

e AASB 2013-9 regarding the Conceptual Framework, Materiality and Financial Instruments (Parts B
and C).

While the impact of these standards in the period of initial application has not been specifically
quantified, they are not expected to materially impact the financial statements.
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2.

2014 2013
$' 000 $' 000

EXPENSES EXCLUDING LOSSES

(a) Employee related expenses

Salaries and wages (including annual leave) 1,811,103 1,716,100
Superannuation - defined benefit plans* 192,211 167,449
Superannuation - defined contribution plans 134,197 118,260
Long service leave 121,071 41,538
Workers' compensation insurance 433,388 357,682
Death and disability self-insurance scheme 1,276 360
Payroll taxand fringe benefit tax 125,925 113,611
Other 868 220
2,820,039 2,515,220

Employee related expenses excluded fromthe above are as follows:
(i) Capitalised as intangible assets - $0.034 million at 30 June 2014 ($0.471 million in 2012-13).
(ii) Capitalised as property, plant and equipment - $1.121 million at 30 June 2014 ($0.698 million in 2012-13).

* Included in the 'Superannuation - defined benefit plans' is contribution for the Death and Total and
Permanent Disability Cover of $124.698 million ($99.928 miillion in 2012-13).

(b) Other operating expenses

Auditor's remuneration - audit of the financial statements 355 350
Operating lease rental expense - minimum lease payments 64,766 64,565
Insurance 61,717 61,669
Maintenance * 37,020 46,821
Other building expenses 28,126 29,180
Subsistence and transport 22,354 21,083
Motor vehicle, launches and aircraft 49,166 47,793
Fees for services rendered 86,286 82,220
Computer licensing and other 26,448 21,961
Gas and electricity 15,987 17,964
Postal and telephone 24,075 23,593
Stationery, printing and stores 8,326 9,209
Consultants 115 10
Contractors 6,511 7,182
Operation Supplies 12,239 9,665
Police Uniform Supplies 6,110 6,063
Other 5,778 9,480

455,379 458,808

*Reconciliation - Total maintenance
Maintenance expense - contracted labour and other (non employee

related), as above 37,020 46,821
Employee related maintenance expenses included in Note 2(a) 8,358 8,785
Total maintenance expenses included in Note 2(a) + 2(b) 45,378 55,606
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2. EXPENSES EXCLUDING LOSSES (continued)

(c) Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation
Buildings
Plant and equipment

Amortisation
Intangible assets - software

(d) Grants andsubsidies
Police and Community Youth Clubs contribution

(e) Finance costs
Finance lease interest charges
Borrowing interest expenses
Unwinding of discount rate

(f) Other expenses
Witnesses' expenses

3. REVENUE

(a) Sale of goods and services
Rents and leases - other
NSW Police Force College operations
Officers on loan
Insurance reports
Sports/Entertainment Events - Supervision
National Criminal History Records Check
Refund of escort expenses
Minor sales of goods and services

(b) Investment revenue
Interest - NSW Treasury (Financial assets not at fair value through
profit or loss)
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2014 2013
$' 000 $' 000
43,636 47,289
80,756 73,604

124,392 120,893
15,519 15,604
15,519 15,604

139,911 136,497

9,187 9,335
9,187 9,335
10,313 10,773

31 17
563 743
10,907 11,533

2,236 2,324
2,236 2,324

3,205 3,322

2,032 1,043

9,082 6,472

2,655 2,611

9,755 8,443

4,378 4,724

2,668 2,464

3,361 3,011

38,036 32,990

3,743 2,641

3,743 2,641
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2014 2013
$' 000 $' 000
3. REVENUE (continued)
(c) Grants and contributions
State Grants and Contributions

Recurrent grants from Department of Justice 2,980,187 2,912,771
Capital grants from Department of Justice 124,000 137,290
Roads and Maritime Services (RMS) - Road Trauma Program™* 18,569 17,782
Fire and Rescue NSW - Helicopter Maintenance 583 583
NSW Ministry of Health - Alcohol and Drug Programs 760 600
Office of Communities (Aboriginal Affairs) - Safe Families Program - 396
NSW Centre for Road Safety - Solo Cycle Response Team - 400
NSW Centre for Road Safety - High Visibility Markings - 928
NSW Centre for Road Safety - P4 and Data Enhancement 244 -
NSW Centre for Road Safety - Random Roadside Drug Testing Consumable 114 -
NSW Centre for Road Safety - Tuff Books Maintenance 80 -
NSW Centre for Road Safety - In-house Pharmacologists PSNs 552 -
NSW Centre for Road Safety - Meter Matters 150 -
Domestic Violence Intervention Program - various NSW Government agencies 594 1,019
Department of Justice - Life/Youth On Track 311 105
NSW Centre for Road Safety - various capital programs 6,192 2,499
Miscellaneous 620 420
3,132,956 3,074,793

Commonwealth Grants and Contributions
Crimtrac 1,481 1,205
Operation Polaris 2,900 2,900
Counter Terrorism - Drill Style program 160 160
Miscellaneous 77 346
4,618 4,611
3,137,574 3,079,404

Conditional grants and contributions recognised as revenue in the current year, not fully spent with expected
expenditure to occur in:
2014-15 2,137
Beyond 2014-15 -
2,137
Unconditional grants and contributions recognised as revenue in the current year, not fully spent with expected
expenditure to occur in:

2014-15 9,883
Beyond 2014-15 -

9,883

Grants and contributions recognised as revenue in previous years, that were expended in the current year:

Prior to 2005-06 -
2005-06 31
2007-08 86
2009-10 317
2010-11 122
2011-12 289
2012-13 6,864

7,709

* RMS and NSW Police Force have put in place an Enhancement Enforcement Programto augment traffic
enforcement services where RMS provide ancillary funds for additional activity through overtime and rostered
days for police overtime. NSW Police Force is reimbursed costs incurred through this program.
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2014 2013
$' 000 $' 000
3. REVENUE (continued)
(d) Acceptance by the Crown Entity of employee benefits and
other liabilities
The following liabilities and / or expenses have been assumed by the
Crown Entity or other government agencies:
Superannuation - defined benefit plans 67,513 67,521
Long service leave 121,071 41,538
Payroll tax 3,679 3,681
192,263 112,740
(e) Other revenue
Employee contributions to Death and Disability Scheme 22,688 21,381
Insurance recoveries 2005 Award- Partial and Permanent Disablement 7,659 12,948
Recognition of pre-existing but previously unrecorded assets 698 1,646
Refund frominsurance 456 639
Reversal of provision of restoration costs 2,482 3,628
Bad debts recovered 2,913 231
Recovery of RMS Expenditure - 156
Other 1,872 1,175
38,768 41,804
4. GAIN / (LOSS) ON DISPOSAL
Gain/ (loss) on disposal of land and buildings
Proceeds from disposal - 1,403
Written down value of assets disposed (1,247) (3,788)
Net gain / (loss) on disposal of land and buildings (1,247) (2,385)
Gain/ (loss) on disposal of plant and equipment
Proceeds fromdisposal 904 70
Written down value of assets disposed (2,741) (1,484)
Net gain / (loss) on disposal of plant and equipment (1,837) (1,414)
Gain/ (loss) on disposal of Software Intangibles
Proceeds fromdisposal - -
Written down value of assets disposed (12) -
Net gain / (loss) on disposal of Software Intangibles (12) -
Gain/ (loss) on disposal of assets held for sale
Proceeds fromdisposal - 923
Written down value of assets disposed - (950)
Net gain/ (loss) on disposal of assets held for sale - (27)
Total gain/ (loss) on disposal (3,096) (3,826)
5. OTHER GAINS / (LOSSES)
Impairment of receivables (541) (1,006)
(541) (1,006)
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6. SERVICE GROUPS OF NSW POLICE FORCE

Service Group 39.1 - Community Support

Service Description:

This service group covers the provision of effective, timely and flexible
24 hour response to incidents, emergencies and public events. It also
includes reduction of incentives and opportunities to commit crime, the
provision of a highly visible police presence, and liaison/partnerships
with the community and Government organisations concerned with
maintaining peace, order and public safety.

Service Group 39.2 - Criminal Investigation

Service Description:

This service group covers the detection and investigation of crime, the
provision of forensic services and provides for the arrest of or other
relevant action in respect of offenders. It also includes specialist
activities to target organised criminal activities and criminal groups,
maintenance of forensic databases and criminal records, and liaison with
other law enforcement agencies.

Service Group 39.3 - Traffic and Commuter Services

Service Description:

This service group covers the patrol of roads, highways and public
transport corridors, the investigation of major vehicle crashes, the
detection of traffic and transport offences (particularly those involving
alcohol or drugs and speed), and the supervision of peak traffic flows.
It also includes liaison/partnerships with community and Government
bodies concerned with road safety, traffic management and public
transport.

Service Group 39.4 - Judicial Support

Service Description:

This service group covers judicial and custodial services, the
prosecution of offenders, the presentation of evidence at court,
including coronial enquiries, the provision of police transport and
custody for people under police supervision, and the provision of a
high level of support to victims and witnesses.
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2014 2013
$' 000 $' 000
7. CURRENT ASSETS - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at bank and on hand 124,940 98,628
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand (including permanent and temporary advances) and
cash at bank.
Cash and cash equivalent assets recognised in the statement of financial
position are reconciled at the end of the financial year to the statement of
cash flows as follows:
Cash and cash equivalents (per statement of financial position) 124,940 98,628
Closing cash and cash equivalents (per statement of cash flows) 124,940 98,628

NSW Police Force had the following banking facilities as at 30 June 2014:
Bank guarantee authority of $0.5 million ($0.5 million in 2012-13). This
authority enables NSW Police Force to provide bank guarantees to its
suppliers on a need basis. There were no bank guarantees issued as at
30 June 2014.

MasterCard facility of $7.5 million ($5.5 million in 2012-13), which is the
total of the credit limit for all issued credit cards and purchase cards.
Total amount of credit unused as at 30 June 2014 was $2.60 million
($1.64 million in 2012-13).

Letter of credit facility of $2 million ($2 million in 2012-13). Total amount
of letter of credit facility unused as at 30 June 2014 was $2 million ($2
million in 2012-13).

Offset accounts facility of $0.05 million ($0.05 million in 2012-13). This
facility allows bank fees incurred during the month to be debited to a
temporary debit account, which are then transferred to the NSW Police
Force main operating bank account the following month. Total amount
of offset accounts facility unused as at 30 June 2014 was $0.04 million
($0.04 million in 2012-13).

Refer Note 25 for details regarding credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk
arising fromfinancial instruments.
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2014 2013
$' 000 $' 000
8. CURRENT /NON-CURRENT ASSETS - RECEIVABLES
Receivables - Current
Sale of goods and services 20,126 13,246
Less: Allowance for impairment (191) (247)
19,935 12,999
Other Debtors 30,154 32,972
Less: Allowance for impairment (1,902) (4,361)
28,252 28,611
GST receivable 9,927 27,932
Prepayments 18,865 18,008
Total Receivables -Current 76,979 87,550
Receivables - Non-Current
Other Debtors 20,600 37,700
Total Receivables - Non-Current 20,600 37,700
Movement in the allowance for impairment — Trade debtors

Balance at 1 July 247 152
Amounts written off during the year (85) (75)
Amounts recovered during the year (13) (23)
Increase / (decrease) in allowance recognised in profit or loss 42 193
Balance at 30 June 191 247

Movement in the allowance for impairment — Other debtors
Balance at 1 July 4,361 3,807
Amounts written off during the year (34) (48)
Amounts recovered during the year (3,093) (2,633)
Increase / (decrease) in allowance recognised in profit or loss 668 3,235
Balance at 30 June 1,902 4,361

Details regarding credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, including
financial assets that are either past due or impaired, are disclosed in
Note 25.
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9. NON-CURRENT ASSETS -
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

At 1 July 2013 - fair value
Gross carrying amount
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Net Carrying Amount

At 30 June 2014 - fair value
Gross carrying amount
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Net Carrying Amount

Reconciliations

Land and Plant and Total
Buildings Equipment
$' 000 $' 000 $' 000
2,045,809 764,120 2,809,929
(784,665) (469,452) (1,254,117)
1,261,144 294,668 1,555,812
2,082,642 749,534 2,832,176
(821,025) (436,969) (1,257,994)
1,261,617 312,565 1,574,182

A reconciliation of the carrying amount of each class of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and

end of the current reporting period is set out below:

Landand Plant and Leased Total
Buildings Equipment Buildings
$' 000 $' 000 $' 000 $' 000
Year ended 30 June 2014

Net Carrying amount at start of year 1,162,408 294,668 98,736 1,555,812
Additions 37,380 96,052 * - 133,432
Disposals (1,247) (2,741) - (3,988)

Net revaluation increment less revaluation
decrements 7,976 5,342 - 13,318
Depreciation expense (34,157) (80,756) (9,479) (124,392)
Net carrying amount at end of year* 1,172,360 312,565 89,257 1,574,182

# Additions in plant and equipment includes a $7.355 million reclassification from Intangible assets.

* Included in the net carrying amount are work in progress of $55.595 million and $60.833 million for land and

buildings, and plant and equipment respectively.

At 1 July 2012 - fair value
Gross carrying amount
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Net Carrying Amount

At 30 June 2013 - fair value
Gross carrying amount
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Net Carrying Amount
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Land and Plant and Total
Buildings Equipment
$' 000 $' 000 $' 000
1,968,410 741,226 2,709,636
(751,553) (430,082) (1,181,635)
1,216,857 311,144 1,528,001
2,045,809 764,120 2,809,929
(784,665) (469,452) (1,254,117)
1,261,144 294,668 1,555,812
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9. NON-CURRENT ASSETS -
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Reconciliations

A reconciliation of the carrying amount of each class of property, plant and equipment at the beginning
and end of the current reporting period is set out below:

Land and Plant and Leased Total
Buildings Equipment Buildings
$' 000 $' 000 $' 000 $' 000
Year ended 30 June 2013

Net Carrying amount at start of year 1,108,642 311,144 108,215 1,528,001
Additions 64,582 56,919 - 121,501
Assets held for sale - written back 841 - - 841
Disposals (3,788) (1,484) - (5,272)

Net revaluation increment less revaluation
decrements 29,941 1,693 - 31,634
Depreciation expense (37,810) (73,604) (9,479) (120,893)
Net carrying amount at end of year* 1,162,408 294,668 98,736 1,555,812

* Included in the net carrying amount are work in progress of $76.444 million and $23.045 million for land
and buildings, and plant and equipment respectively.

10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Software
$' 000
At1 July2013
Cost (gross carrying amount) 267,999
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (148,677)
Net Carrying Amount 119,322
At 30 June 2014
Cost (gross carrying amount) 240,087
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (137,444)
Net Carrying Amount 102,643
Software
$' 000
Year ended 30 June 2014
Net carrying amount at start of year 119,322
Additions (frominternal development) 5,853
Additions (purchases) 354
Disposals 12)
Amortisation (recognised in “depreciation and amortisation™) (15,519)
Intangibles reclassified to other assets (7,355)
Net carrying amount at end of year™> 102,643

* Included in the net carrying amount is work in progress of $17.015 million.
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10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

At1 July 2012
Cost (gross carrying amount)
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net Carrying Amount

At 30 June 2013
Cost (gross carrying amount)
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net Carrying Amount

Year ended 30 June 2013
Net carrying amount at start of year
Additions (frominternal development)
Additions (purchases)
Disposals

Amortisation (recognised in “depreciation and amortisation™)

Net carrying amount at end of year*

* Included in the net carrying amount is work in progress of $38.245 million.

11. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

(a) Fair Value Hierarchy

2014

Property, plant and equipment
Land and buildings

Marine equipment and aviation assets

Lewl 3

$' 000

1,172,360

29,179

Software
$' 000

240,801

(133,122)
107,679

267,999
(148,677)
119,322

Software
$' 000

107,679
25,697
1,550

(15,604)

119,322

Total
Fair Value
$' 000

1,172,360

29,179

1,201,539

1,201,539

There were no transfers between Level 1 or Level 2 during the period.

The “total” above includes assets measured at fair value and will not reconcile to the total property, plant

and equipment recognised in the statement of financial position.
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(b) Valuation techniques, inputs and processes
For each class of property, plant and equipment, a description of the valuation technique applied and the inputs
used in the fair value measurement is disclosed in the table below.
For the valuation processes refer Note 1(i) (iii).

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

Class

Valuation Technique

Key inputs

Land and buildings

Land and residential
buildings

Market approach — land is valued based on comparable property
sales transactions and where identical properties are not available,
adjustments have been made to reflect the following characteristics
of the asset: location, topography, construction, age, condition, size,
legal/ physical restrictions, and enhancements.

These assets are classified as Level 3 as the adjustments made to the
observable data of comparative properties are considered significant
and require judgement to be exercised by the valuer.

- Comparable property sales
values

- Adjustments for location,
topography, construction, age,
condition, and size

- Adjustments for restrictions
or enhancements

Police stations,
combined police stations
and residences and other
specialised buildings
(including heritage
assets)

Cost approach — specialised buildings are valued based on the
current replacement cost of the most appropriate modern
equivalent replacement facility having a similar service potential
to the existing asset.

These assets are classified as Level 3 as the estimated construction
costs are considered a significant adjustment to the observable data
of comparable properties.

- Estimated construction costs
for customisation
- Depreciation rate/useful life

Plant and equipment

Aviation assets

Market approach — Aviation assets are valued based on secondary
market evidence with allowance made for certain elements of the air
fleet including: engine overhauls or replacements, paint scheme,
location, law enforcement equipment, and design modifications.

These assets are classified as Level 3 as the allowance for the above
elements are considered a significant adjustment to the observable
data of the secondary market transactions.

- Secondary market data

- Adjustments for engine
overhauls or replacements,
paint scheme, location, law
enforcement equipment, and
design modifications

Marine assets

Cost approach — Specialised assets are valued based on the cost to
replace the asset with a new asset, an estimate of the residual value
and depreciation.

Market approach — Non specialised assets are valued based on
secondary market evidence.

- Cost of new replacement
asset

- Residual value

- Depreciation rate/useful life

- Secondary market data
- Depreciation rate/useful life

There has been no change in valuation technique in the current year. The highest and best use of the assets is its current use.
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11. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of recurring Lewel 3 fair value measurements

Land and Marine Total Recurring
Buildings Equipment Lewel 3 Fair
and Aviation Value
Assets
$°000 $°000 $°000
Fair value as at 1 July 2013 1,162,408 30,868 1,193,276
Additions 37,380 935 38,315
Revaluation increments/decrements recognised in
other comprehensive income — included in line item
‘Net increase/(decrease) in property, plant and
equipment revaluation surplus’ 7,976 1,812 9,788
Disposals (1,247) (855) (2,102
Depreciation expense (34,157) (3,581) (37,738)
Fair value as at 30 June 2014 1,172,360 29,179 1,201,539

There were no transfers to or from Level 2 during the period.
The “total” above includes assets measured at fair value and will not reconcile to the total property, plant
and equipment recognised in the statement of financial position.
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11.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of recurring Lewel 3 fair value measurements (continued)

For each class of property, plant and equipment, a description of sensitivity of fair value measurement to
changes in unobservable inputs is disclosed in the table below.

Class

Unobservable Inputs

Sensitivity of fair value
measurement to changes in
unobservable inputs

Land and buildings

Land and residential
buildings

Positive and negative adjustments for location,
topography, construction, age, condition, and size.
The net impact of these adjustments is in the range of
-400% to +88% of the total value of the asset.

Adjustments for restrictions are in the range of 20% to
30% of the total value of the asset. These adjustments
are made by the external valuer and require judgement to
be exercised by the external valuer.

Significant increases/ (decreases) in the
positive adjustments or decreases/
(increases) in the negative adjustments
would result in a significantly higher/
(lower) fair value of the asset.

Police stations,
combined police stations
and residences and other
specialised buildings
(including heritage
assets)

The estimated construction costs for customisation make
up the total value of the asset.
The remaining useful life is in the range of 3 to 58 years.

Significant increases/ (decreases) in
estimated construction costs or useful
life would result in a significantly
higher/ (lower) fair value of the asset.

Plant and equipment

Aviation assets

Adjustments for engine overhauls or replacements, paint
scheme, location, law enforcement equipment, and design
modifications are in the range of 3 to 11% of the total
value of the asset.

Significant increases/ (decreases) in the
positive adjustments or decreases/
(increases) in the negative adjustments
would result in a significantly higher/
(lower) fair value of the asset.

Marine assets

Specialised assets:

The estimated replacement cost make up the total value
of the asset.

The remaining useful life is 9 years.

Significant increases/ (decreases) in
estimated replacement costs, residual
value, or useful life would result in a
significantly higher/ (lower) fair value
of the asset.

Non-specialised assets:

The remaining useful life is 7 years.

Adjustments for modifications to the asset are in the
range of -27% to 0% of the total value of the asset.

Significant increases/ (decreases) in the
positive adjustments or remaining
useful life or significant decreases/
(increases) in the negative adjustments
would result in a significantly higher/
(lower) fair value of the asset.
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2014 2013
$' 000 $' 000
12. RESTRICTED ASSETS
Included in the current assets are the following restricted assets:
Death and Disabilities Scheme Monies 20,440 4,547
20,440 4,547

The monies for the death and disability scheme are received from NSW
Treasury and through police officers’ employee contributions. These
funds are applied exclusively in the use of death and disability related
payments only.

The NSW Treasury currently underwrites the unfunded liabilities
arising from the NSW Police’s death and disability scheme.
Supplementation to the recurrent budget is sought and approved by
NSW Treasury to meet unfunded costs of the scheme.

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY
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2014 2013
$' 000 $' 000
13. CURRENT LIABILITIES - PAYABLES
Accrued salaries, wages and on-costs 56,311 42,220
Payroll Tax 11,612 7,330
Fringe Benefits Tax 1,500 1,341
Pay As You Go Taxwithheld 11 36
Employee deductions withheld 814 735
Superannuation Guarantee Charge Payable 1 1
Creditors 3,729 9,846
Unearned revenue 105 -
Motor vehicle costs 3,896 3,760
Electronic Billing System (EBS) for telephones 130 -
Petrol Interface 1,809 1,678
Forensic Services Group 1,724 1,741
Education Services 758 716
Business Technology Services 340 258
State Crime Command 465 834
Auditor's remuneration - audit of the financial statements 304 218
Specialist Operations 443 436
Copyright fees for NSW Government print copying 430 491
Property related costs 5,240 5,065
Aircraft maintenance 547 780
Miscellaneous sponsorship 88 161
GST accruals 1,288 1,645
Uncoded expense accruals 1,008 183
Capital expense accruals 3,735 3,377
Various sundry accruals 4,343 900
100,721 83,752
Details regarding credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, including a
maturity analysis of the above payables are disclosed in Note 25.
14. CURRENT / NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES -
BORROWINGS
Treasury Advances Repayable
Current 138 133
Non-current 531 669
669 802

The advance from NSW Treasury under the Sustainable Government Investment Program, is to fund
environmental efficiency upgrade projects at Sydney Police Centre. The advance will be repaid in half-
yearly instalments of principal and interest over a period of sixyears at the TCorp bond rate.

Finance lease (see Note 17 (c) )

Current 8,851 7,678
Non-current 145,526 154,377
154,377 162,055

Details regarding credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, including a maturity
analysis of the above borrowings are disclosed in Note 25.

Total Current Borrowings 8,989 7,811
Total Non-Current Borrowings 146,057 155,046
Total Borrowings 155,046 162,857
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2014
$' 000

15. CURRENT / NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES - PROVISIONS

Employee benefits and related on costs - Current
Annual leave *
Annual leave on long service leave
Non-renewal benefit*
Leave loading
Workers' compensation on long service leave
Superannuation on long service leave
Other Oncost on Leave - Superannuation
Payroll taxon annual leave liability
Payroll taxon long service leave
Payroll taxon other leave provisions
Death and disability self-insurance scheme

Employee benefits and related on costs - Non-Current
Annual leave on long service leave
Non-renewal benefit
Workers' compensation on long service leave
Superannuation on long service leave
Payroll taxon long service leave

Payroll taxon other leave provisions
Death and disability self-insurance scheme

Subtotal Employee benefits and related on costs

Other Provisions — Current
Restoration costs

Other Provisions — Non-Current
Restoration costs

Subtotal Other Provisions

Total Current Provisions
Total Non-Current Provisions
Total Provisions

Aggregate employee benefits and related on-costs
Provisions — Current
Provisions — Non-Current
Accrued salaries, wages and on-costs (refer Note 13)

202,172
35,204
63,005

1,806
6,203
19,540
11,014
11,018
36,791
3,532
11,200

401,485

1,853
23,222
326
1,028
1,936
1,266
21,700

51,331
452,816

2,558

2,558

14,709

14,709

17,267

404,043
66,040

470,083

401,485
51,331
56,311

509,127

2013
$' 000

205,793
30,781
57,602

1,766
5,433
14,669
9,937
11,216
32,087
3,236
11,800

384,320

1,620
20,238
286
772
1,689
1,103
34,400

60,108
444,428

2,168

2,168

14,906

14,906

17,074

386,488
75,014

461,502

384,320
60,108
42,220

486,648

* Employee benefits expected to be settled more than 12 months after the reporting dates are as follows:
(i) Annual leave totals $1.837 million ($2.638 million in 2012-13)
(i) Non-renewal benefit totals $55.689 million ($52.138 million in 2012-13)
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2014 2013
$' 000 $' 000

15. CURRENT / NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES - PROVISIONS
(continued)

Mowvements in provisions (other than employee benefits)
Movements in the restoration provision during the financial year, are set out below:

Restoration Costs

Carrying amount at the beginning of financial year 17,074 18,414
Additional provisions recognised 2,164 (181)
Amounts used (140) (66)
Unused amounts reversed (2,394) (1,836)
Unwinding / change in the discount rate 563 743
Carrying amount at the end of financial year 17,267 17,074

16. CURRENT / NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES - OTHER

Other Liabilities - Current

Repayment of grant 199 -
Lease incentives 70 100
Other 57 57

326 157

Other Liabilities — Non-Current

Lease incentives 284 354
284 354
Total Liabilities — Other 610 511

Details regarding credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, including a
maturity analysis of the above payables are disclosed in Note 25.

17. COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE
(@) Capital Commitments

Aggregate capital expenditure contracted for at balance date and not
provided for:

Not later than one year 41,157 102,374
Later than one year and not later than 5 years 839 109,109
Later than five years - -
Total (including GST) 41,996 211,483

Input taxcredits of $3.436 million ($19.226 million in 2012-13), expected
to be recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office, are included
above.
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2014 2013
$' 000 $' 000
17. COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE (continued)
(b) Operating Lease Commitments
Future non-cancellable operating lease rentals not provided for and
payable:
Not later than one year 64,989 68,508
Later than one year and not later than 5 years 134,559 135,786
Later than five years 67,894 73,614
Total (including GST) 267,442 277,908
Input tax credits of $24.276 million ($24.263 million in 2012-13), expected
to be recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office, are included
above.
Operating lease commitments comprise property (office buildings and
radio sites) lease rentals and motor vehicle fleet leases. Lease terms for
operating leases vary as mentioned below and generally, require a
monthly payment in advance for both rent and outgoings.
Building leases vary between 1 - 12 years, and are generally subject to
either CPI, fixed or market rental review at regular intervals.
Radio site leases vary from 1 - 20 years, and are generally subject to
either CPI and or an escalation from 3% to 6% annually.
Motor vehicle fleet leases vary from 6 months to 5 years, and are subject
to a fixed interest rate during the lease term.
NSW Police Force does not have contingent leases, nor does it incur
any rental expense arising from sub-leases.
(c) Finance Lease Commitments
Minimum lease payment commitments in relation 